
 

 

www.eden.gov.uk         

J Gooding 
Interim Chief Executive 

Date: 11 August 2021 
 
 
 
 

Town Hall, Penrith, Cumbria CA11 7QF 

Tel: 01768 817817 

Email: cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 

Planning Committee Agenda - 19 August 2021 
 

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Planning Committee will be held at 9.30 am on 
Thursday, 19 August 2021 at the The Council Chamber, Town Hall, Penrith. 
 
Please note: if you would like to attend this meeting, we would request that you let 
us know in advance. Please contact Democratic Services; the details are below*. 
We would also request that wherever possible, all those attending wear face 
coverings and practice social distancing and hand sanitising measures. This is due 
to the continuing health and safety concerns relating to the Covid pandemic. 
 
 

1   Apologies for Absence   
 

2   Minutes   
 

To sign the minutes Pla/24/07/21 to Pla/37/07/21 of the meeting of this Committee 
held on 15 July 2021 as a correct record of those proceedings (copies previously 
circulated). 
 

3   Declarations of Interest   
 

To receive any declarations of the existence and nature of any private interests, both 
disclosable pecuniary and any other registrable interests, in any matter to be 
considered or being considered. 
 

4   Questions and Representations from Members of the Public   
 

To receive questions and representations from the public under Rules 10 and 11 of 
the Council Procedure Rules of the Constitution. 
 

5   Questions and Representations from Members   
 

To receive questions and representations from Members under Rules 11 and 12 of 
the Council Procedure Rules of the Constitution. 
 
 
 
 



www.eden.gov.uk 2 

6   Planning Issues  (Pages 5 - 18) 
 

To note the attached lists of the Assistant Director Planning and Economic 
Development.  
 

a) Applications determined under office delegated powers for the month of July 
2021  

b) Reasons for refusal on delegated decisions for the month of July 2021. 
 

7   Planning Issues - Applications for Debate (Green Papers)  (Pages 19 - 86) 
 

To consider the reports of the Assistant Director Planning and Economic 
Development on the following applications:  
 

Item 
No 

Application Details 
Officer 
Recommendation 

Page 
Number 

1 Planning Application No: 21/0252 
Erection of a dwelling including 
associated operations 
Land north of the Rectory, Greystoke, 
CA11 0TJ 
Mr N Richards 

Recommended to: 
REFUSE 
With Reasons 

21 

2 Planning Application No: 20/0424 
Change of Use of agricultural land for 
the siting of 73 lodge style caravans, 
landscaping and ancillary works 
Ullswater Heights Holiday Homes and 
lodge Park, Silver Howe, Flusco 
Leisure Resorts Ltd 

Recommend to: 
APPROVE subject 
to conditions 

37 

3 Planning Application No: 20/0404 
Proposed residential dwelling 
Land at Gloucester Yard, Penrith 
Mr and Mrs Naylor 

Recommended to: 
APPROVE 
Subject to 
Conditions 

73 

 
 

8   Confirmation of Site Visits (if any)   
 

To confirm the date and location of any site visits that may have been agreed. 
 

9   Any Other Items which the Chairman decides are urgent   
 

10   Date of Next Meeting   
 

The date of the next scheduled meeting be confirmed as 16 September 2021. 
 

 
Yours faithfully 
 



www.eden.gov.uk 3 

 
 
J Gooding 
Interim Chief Executive 
 
*Democratic Services Contact: Email: cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk 
or telephone: 01768 212266 
 
 
Encs 
 
For Attention 
All members of the Council 
 
Chairman – Councillor W Patterson (Independent Alliance Group) 
Vice Chairman – Councillor D Wicks (Conservative Group) 
 
Councillors 

I Chambers, Conservative Group 
M Eyles, Liberal Democrat Group 
M Hanley, Labour Group 
D Holden, Liberal Democrat Group 
J C Lynch, Conservative Group 
 

E Martin, Conservative Group 
A Ross, Green Group 
H Sawrey-Cookson, Independent Group 
G Simpkins, Liberal Democrat Group 
 

 
Standing Deputies 

P G Baker, Liberal Democrat Group 
D Banks, Independent Alliance Group 
R Briggs, Conservative Group 
M Clark, Independent Group 
L Harker, Liberal Democrat Group 
S Lancaster, Independent Group 
 

D Lawson, Green Group 
A Meadowcroft, Conservative Group 
G Nicolson OBE, Conservative Group 
D Ryland, Independent Group 
L Sharp, Labour Group 
D Smith, Liberal Democrat Group 
 

Please Note: Under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 
this meeting has been advertised as a public meeting (unless stated otherwise) and 
as such could be filmed or recorded by the media or members of the public 

mailto:cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE

APPLICATIONS DETERMINED UNDER OFFICER DELEGATED POWERS FOR THE MONTH OF JULY 2021

Agenda Item No.

App No DescriptionParish DecisionApp Type Location Applicant

18/0585 Full Application Mr & Mrs DawsonDacre APPROVEDProposed residential development. GREYSTONE HOUSE, STAINTON, 
PENRITH, CA11 0EF

20/0648 Full Application Mr B ParkinsonAlston APPROVEDProposed change of use of former Blue Bell Hotel to 
3 dwellings.

BLUEBELL INN, TOWNFOOT, 
ALSTON, CA9 3RN

20/0649 Listed Building Mr B ParkinsonAlston APPROVEDListed Building Consent for internal and external 
alterations to the former Blue Bell Hotel to allow for 
its conversion to 3 dwellings.

BLUEBELL INN, TOWNFOOT, 
ALSTON, CA9 3RN

20/0677 Full Application J A Sayer - Messrs D & 
A Sayer

Lowther APPROVEDErection of 3 dwellings. HACKTHORPE HOUSE, 
HACKTHORPE, CA10 2HX

20/0947 Full Application Mr S CrooksStainmore APPROVEDProposed sun room conversion and new garage. CLATTERON COTTAGE, NORTH 
STAINMORE, KIRKBY STEPHEN, 
CA17 4EU

20/1003 Full Application R Heritage Design and 
Build Ltd - Mr R 

Heritage

Morland APPROVEDErection of dwelling. DEPOT AT FELL VIEW, MORLAND, 
PENRITH, CA10 3AX

21/0116 Full Application North West ARB Ltd - 
Mr S Hodgson

Orton APPROVEDReplacement of timber framed building with steel 
framed building.

COATFLATT HALL, TEBAY, 
PENRITH, CA10 3SZ

21/0188 Full Application Katie StubbsShap APPROVEDChange of use from garage to bunkhouse for 2 
people.

BRACKENBER LODGE, SHAP, 
PENRITH, CA10 3QB

21/0209 Full Application Mr A ThompsonCastle Sowerby REFUSEDChange of use of agricultural land for the siting of 4 
static holiday accommodation huts and 2 No. 
caravan pitches, change of use of stable block to 
shower and toilet facilities, installation of sewerage 
treatment plant, associated works and creation of 
new access track

CHERRY TREES, HESKET 
NEWMARKET, WIGTON, CA7 8HZ

21/0223 Full Application W M Heron & Sons LtdWarcop APPROVEDPortable building to roof over sheep handling pens. EASTFIELD FARM, WARCOP, 
APPLEB-IN-WESTMORLAND, CA16 
6PS

21/0257 Full Application Mr PurdhamGlassonby APPROVEDChange of use of part of agricultural field to 
domestic, addition of side extension and 
replacement/alterations to roof and creation of 
access.

HOLME LEA, GAMBLESBY, 
PENRITH, CA10 1HR

06 August 2021 Page 1 of 7

P
age  5

A
genda Item

 6



App No DescriptionParish DecisionApp Type Location Applicant

21/0261 Full Application Citadel Homes - Mr 
Dean Montgomery

Hunsonby APPROVEDErection of three bungalows on plots 7 and 8 in lieu 
of the two bungalows consented under application 
20/0670.

FORMER THOMPSONS BOARD 
MILL, LITTLE SALKELD, PENRITH, 
CA10 1NJ

21/0278 Full Application Mr & Mrs HorneStainmore APPROVEDReplacement stable/domestic/agricultural storage 
building.

RAMPSON COTTAGE, SOUTH 
STAINMORE, KIRKBY STEPHEN, 
CA17 4DJ

21/0294 Full Application MR R ADDISONKings Meaburn APPROVEDProposed roof over existing open midding muck 
store area.

LITTLEBECK FARM, LITTLEBECK 
LANE, KINGS MEABURN, PENRITH, 
CA10 3DB

21/0302 Full Application Mr D HodgsonLazonby APPROVEDRetrospective change of use to domestic and 
erection of domestic double garage.

BARNWELL HOUSE, LAZONBY, 
PENRITH, CA10 1BL

21/0306 Full Application Mr J TerryCrackenthorpe APPROVEDChange of use of agricultural land east of existing 
dwelling to residential use (C3 Use Class) involving 
the erection of a single storey garden studio.

KINGS BARN, CRACKENTHORPE, 
CA16 6AF

21/0314 Full Application Mr N WalkerGreystoke APPROVEDVariation of condition 4 (trees) to allow ongoing 
maintenance of trees when required, attached to 
approval 09/0283.

NEDS HOUSE, HUTTON ROOF, 
PENRITH, CA11 0XX

21/0315 Listed Building Deborah ShannonAlston APPROVEDListed Building Consent for new shopfront windows 
and reinstatement of a central shop entrance 
doorway, replacement of four windows on front 
elevation and reconfiguration of partitions in the 
ground floor shop space.

Alston Digital, KEARTONS HOUSE, 
MARKET PLACE, ALSTON, CA9 3HS

21/0320 Full Application Dr & Mrs S & E HuckWinton APPROVEDAddition of a single storey garden room extension to 
the rear of the property.

ROSECOTE, WINTON, KIRKBY 
STEPHEN, CA17 4HS

21/0324 Reserved Matters Mr I DaltonCatterlen APPROVEDReserved Matters application for access, 
appearance, landscaping, layout and scale, attached 
to approval 18/0278.

LAND BETWEEN GARTH VIEW AND 
OLD PARK, CATTERLEN, PENRITH, 
CA11 0BQ

21/0343 Notice of Intention Messrs C S & S E 
Wood & Sons - Mr C 

Wood

Newby APPROVEDPermitted Development Prior Notification for a 
general purpose agricultural building.

LONGLANDS, NEWBY, PENRITH, 
CA10 3EN

21/0381 Full Application Stoneswood 
Developments Ltd

Clifton APPROVEDVariation of condition 2 (plans compliance) to 
incorporate changes to the site layout and the design 
of the proposed dwelling on plot A, attached to 
approval 20/0688.

WETHERIGGS POTTERY, CLIFTON 
DYKES, PENRITH, CA10 2DH

21/0383 Full Application Ms Frances MasonDacre APPROVEDRear single storey extension to form dining space for 
kitchen.

WALNUT HOUSE, STAINTON, CA11 
0ES

06 August 2021 Page 2 of 7

P
age  6



App No DescriptionParish DecisionApp Type Location Applicant

21/0384 Listed Building Ms Frances MasonDacre APPROVEDListed Building Consent for rear single storey 
extension to form dining space for kitchen.

WALNUT HOUSE, STAINTON, CA11 
0ES

21/0385 Cert. of Lawful Woodsman 
Arboricultural 

Consultancy - Mr J 
Richardson

Alston APPROVEDCertificate of lawfulness for the continued use of the 
land for siting of two caravans.

LAND ADJ TO FELL VIEW 
COTTAGE, NENTHEAD, ALSTON, 
CA9 3PS

21/0391 Full Application Ms V KnowlesMurton APPROVEDReplacement of existing lean-to extensions with side 
and rear extensions to provide additional living 
accommodation.

ELLERHOLME, APPLEBY-IN-
WESTMORLAND, CA16 6JG

21/0404 Change of Use 
PD/PN

Lowther Estates TrustLowther APPROVEDChange of use of agricultural building to 2no 
dwellinghouses.

BARN AT TOWN END FARM, 
HACKTHORPE, PENRITH, CA10 2HX

21/0409 Full Application Ms J CalamDacre APPROVEDExtension and remodel. TORR HOUSE, STAINTON, 
PENRITH, CA11 0ES

21/0415 Full Application Bowland Tree 
Consultancy Ltd - Mr P 

Harris

Penrith APPROVEDChange of use from retail unit/flat to office space at 
ground floor and self contained flat above including 
new timber shopfront to ground floor.

14 CASTLEGATE, PENRITH, CA11 
7HZ

21/0418 Full Application Skelton Toppin 
Memorial Hall 

Trustees - Mr Towers

Skelton APPROVEDExtensions and refurbishment of existing village hall 
including accessibility improvements.

TOPPIN MEMORIAL HALL, 
SKELTON, PENRITH, CA11 9TE

21/0424 Full Application Mr & Mrs M BuckleyCastle Sowerby APPROVEDChange of use of residential annex to allow it to be 
used as both an annex and a holiday let, part 
retrospective.

THISTLEWOOD TOWER, DALSTON, 
CARLISLE, CA5 7DS

21/0432 Full Application Mr M MalcomsonGlassonby APPROVEDMinor external alterations to barn comprising 
replacement door with window to west, 2No. 
replacement windows with oak frame, new glazed 
entrance screen, roof glazing and 3No. rooflights to 
south; replacement painted window with oak frame to 
east. Internal alterations to form annexe.

THE NOOK, GAMBLESBY, 
PENRITH, CA10 1HY

21/0436 Full Application Mr Michael CowardHesket APPROVEDExtension and renovation of existing dwelling to 
provide a front porch, new lounge, store and 
bedroom extension. 
Small decked area to exterior 
of new lounge.

7 BRACKENRIGG, ARMATHWAITE, 
CARLISLE, CA4 9PX

21/0438 Full Application Mr J HaydockTebay APPROVEDChange of use of bed and breakfast and flat, to 
residential C3.

PRIMROSE COTTAGE, ORTON 
ROAD, TEBAY, PENRITH, CA10 3TL

21/0439 Reserved by 
Cond

Mr & Mrs ChappelhowCliburn APPROVEDDischarge of condition 3 (surface water drainage), 
attached to approval 19/0060.

LAND NORTH OF GLEBE HOUSE, 
CLIBURN, PENRITH, CA10 3AH

06 August 2021 Page 3 of 7

P
age  7



App No DescriptionParish DecisionApp Type Location Applicant

21/0439 Reserved by 
Cond

Mr & Mrs ChappelhowCliburn APPROVEDDischarge of condition 3 (surface water drainage), 
attached to approval 19/0060.

LAND NORTH OF GLEBE HOUSE, 
CLIBURN, PENRITH, CA10 3AH

21/0440 Full Application Mr R RidleyCulgaith APPROVEDErection of agricultural building to form covered 
midden.

RANBECK, KIRKLAND, PENRITH, 
CA10 1RN

21/0446 Change of Use 
PD/PN

David Britton EstatesDacre APPROVEDPermitted Development Prior Notification for 
proposed change of use of agricultural building to 
create 1No. Dwellinghouse. Re-submission of 
20/0851.

BUILDING SOUTH OF CROFT 
COTTAGES, NEWBIGGIN, 
PENRITH, CA11 0HT

21/0448 Change of Use 
PD/PN

David Britton EstatesDacre APPROVEDChange of use of agricultural building to 
dwellinghouse. Re-submission of 20/0857.

BUILDING WEST OF THE OLD 
POST OFFICE, NEWBIGGIN, 
PENRITH, CA11 0HT

21/0449 Full Application Roxane UK Eden 
Valley - Mr C Fenwick

Lazonby APPROVEDAlterations and extension to existing facility to 
include storage canopy extension, addition of 
samples storage building, conveyor canopy and 
water storage cylinders.

ROXANE UK LTD EDEN VALLEY, 
ARMATHWAITE, PENRITH, CA4 9TU

21/0450 Full Application Mr T FosterCastle Sowerby APPROVEDConstruction of a portal frame roof over an existing 
silage pit.

RYE HILL, SEBERGHAM, CARLISLE, 
CA5 7DX

21/0455 Advertisement Penrith Industrial BID - 
Ms A Jones

Penrith APPROVEDInstallation of 3no non-illuminated directional, pole 
mounted signs.

PENRITH INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, 
PENRITH, 

21/0460 Full Application Mr Roy Bell - R.A. 
Biomass

Penrith APPROVEDErection of detached live-work unit and associated 
continued use of land for timber processing. Revision 
of 21/0097.

LAND AT FIELD 5070, INGLEWOOD 
ROAD, STONEYBECK, PENRITH, 

21/0468 Full Application LIMES COUNTRY 
HOTEL - Mr P George

Dacre APPROVEDRetrospective change of use of guest house C1 to 
dwellinghouse C3.

LIMES COUNTRY HOTEL, LIMES 
COUNTRY GUEST HOUSE, 
REDHILLS LANE, REDHILLS, 
PENRITH, CA11 0DT

21/0472 Full Application Mr & Mrs C KilmurryLong Marton APPROVEDChange of use of land to residential and the 
formation of a designed garden.

LAND SOUTH WEST OF MID TOWN 
FARM, BRAMPTON, APPLEBY-IN-
WESTMORLAND, CA16 6JS

21/0474 Full Application W M Heron & Sons LtdWarcop APPROVEDErection of multipurpose agricultural building. EASTFIELD FARM, WARCOP, CA16 
6PS

21/0476 Full Application Mountain Bothies 
Association - Mr D 

Moorat

Culgaith APPROVEDAlteration of the roof profile for the porch from 
monopitch to dual pitch with small gable.

GREGS HUT, PENNINE WAY, 
KIRKLAND, PENRITH, 

21/0482 Cert. of Lawful Mrs C SydallWarcop APPROVEDCertificate of lawfulness for the continued 
unrestricted occupation of dwelling, in breach of 
condition 1 of planning permission 77/0584

GREENRIGG, BLEATARN, APPLEBY-
IN-WESTMORLAND, CA16 6PX

06 August 2021 Page 4 of 7

P
age  8



App No DescriptionParish DecisionApp Type Location Applicant

21/0488 Full Application Mr W SomervilleNewby APPROVEDRoof over existing sheep handling pens. LANSMERE, NEWBY, PENRITH, 
CA10 3ED

21/0491 Full Application Mr G HedleyYanwath & 
Eamont Bridge

REFUSEDChange of use of holiday let to dwelling. BRIDGE END COTTAGE, EAMONT 
BRIDGE, PENRITH, CA10 2BH

21/0493 Full Application Mr & Mrs K & A ReayKirkoswald APPROVEDBalcony over existing rear flat roof to dwelling. 11 ROODS PLACE, KIRKOSWALD, 
PENRITH, CA10 1EF

21/0496 Full Application Mr & Mrs S & D 
Hinckley

Melmerby APPROVEDProposed two storey side extension. YEW TREE COTTAGE, MELMERBY, 
PENRITH, CA10 1HF

21/0497 Full Application Ms C BellGreystoke APPROVEDProposed agricultural shed. LAND TO THE NORTH EAST OF 
MOTHERBY, MOTHERBY, PENRITH, 

21/0502 Advertisement Mrs J TaylorGreystoke APPROVEDAdvertisement Consent for 1no non-illuminated 
totem sign, 5no non-illuminated information signs, 
4no non-illuminated railing banners, 2no flagpoles 
with flags and show home lettering.

LAND EAST OF THE THORPE, 
GREYSTOKE, 

21/0505 Reserved by 
Cond

Mr G KnowlesCrackenthorpe APPROVEDDischarge of condition 2 (sample materials), 
attached to approval 20/0656.

GARTH HOUSE, 
CRACKENTHORPE, APPLEBY-IN-
WESTMORLAND, CA16 6AH

21/0509 Full Application Mr & Mrs R KirkbridePenrith APPROVEDReplacement of single storey side extension with two 
storey extension.

THE CROFT, CROFT AVENUE, 
PENRITH, CA11 7RQ

21/0510 Full Application Mr J MitchellCastle Sowerby APPROVEDErection of agricultural building. MIRKBOOTHS, RAUGHTON HEAD, 
CARLISLE, CA5 7DT

21/0512 Reserved by 
Cond

Mr D HoeyLazonby APPROVEDDischarge of condition 2 (landscaping details), 
attached to approval 21/0191.

HESKET PARK, HIGH HESKET, 
CARLISLE, CA4 0JF

21/0514 Full Application Mr J P & G J SimpsonLong Marton APPROVEDProposed roof over existing silage clamp. KNOCK CROSS, KNOCK, APPLEBY-
IN-WESTMORLAND, CA16 6DT

21/0516 Reserved by 
Cond

Mr D SmithLazonby APPROVEDDischarge of condition 3 (Surface water drainage), 
attached to approval 19/0858.

EDEN FIELD, ARMATHWAITE, CA4 
9PQ

21/0520 Full Application Dr C StainesPenrith APPROVEDReplacement single storey extension to facilitate 
creation of open plan living space.

17  WORDSWORTH STREET, 
PENRITH, CA11 7QY

21/0522 Full Application c/o CH GroupPenrith APPROVEDVariation of condition 2 (plans compliance) for the 
replacement of the previously approved zinc sheeting 
with natural stone walls and slate on the roof, 
attached to approval 20/0146.

THE LODGE, MAIDENHILL, 
PENRITH, CA11 8SQ

21/0534 Full Application J & B Donald & Son - 
Mr C Donald

Skelton APPROVEDProposed roof over existing silage pit. LAMONBY HALL, LAMONBY, 
PENRITH, CA11 9SS

06 August 2021 Page 5 of 7

P
age  9



App No DescriptionParish DecisionApp Type Location Applicant

21/0537 Full Application Ms E RichardsonPenrith APPROVEDSingle storey sunroom extension. 51 MUSGRAVE STREET, PENRITH, 
CA11 9AS

21/0540 Full Application Ms D ShannonAlston APPROVEDNew shopfront windows and reinstatement of a 
central shop entrance doorway, replacement of four 
windows on front elevation and reconfiguration of 
partitions in the ground floor shop space.

KEARTON HOUSE, MARKET 
PLACE, ALSTON, CA9 3HS

21/0546 Notice of Intention Mr J MitchellCastle Sowerby APPROVEDPermitted Development Prior Notification for the 
creation of track.

MIRKBOOTHS, RAUGHTON HEAD, 
CARLISLE, CA5 7DT

21/0547 Notice of Intention Messrs R & E Holmes - 
Mr R Holmes

Shap APPROVEDPermitted Development Prior Notification for the 
erection of an agricultural building.

THE GREEN, SLEAGILL, PENRITH, 
CA10 3HD

21/0552 Tree Works (CA) Bill SmithTemple Sowerby APPROVEDRemoval of Mountain Ash Tree 1  TEMPLARS COURT, TEMPLE 
SOWERBY, PENRITH, CA10 1SR

21/0556 Tree Works (CA) Penbury House 
Management Company

Penrith APPROVEDReduce Silver Birch Tree by 30% approx. PENBURY HOUSE, BEACON EDGE, 
PENRITH, CA11 7BD

21/0557 Tree Works (CA) Mrs Liz DavisPenrith APPROVEDT1 Fell Apple Tree, T2 Fell Rowan. 46A  WORDSWORTH STREET, 
PENRITH, CA11 7QY

21/0572 Tree Works 
(TPO)

Phillip JelfPenrith APPROVEDWorks (trimming) of tree with TPO in Conservation 
Area.

YEW TREES, LOWTHER STREET, 
PENRITH, CA11 7UW

21/0581 Tree Works 
(TPO)

Matthew FearnPenrith APPROVEDApplication for tree works, large Sycamore - Crown 
lifting and thinning

18  PARKLANDS WAY, PENRITH, 
CA11 8SD

21/0586 Tree Works (CA) Rachel RichardPenrith APPROVEDPrune Lime trees in garden. CHADWELL HOUSE, NICHOLSON 
LANE, PENRITH, CA11 7UL

21/0587 Full Application Mr MessengerSkelton APPROVEDRetrospective application for the creation and 
upgrade of cattle tracks.

THE HOWES, CALTHWAITE, 
PENRITH, CA11 9QG

21/0588 Tree Works 
(TPO)

Sylvia MallinsonClifton REFUSEDWorks to Sycamore subject to a TPO. 31  CUMBERLAND CLOSE, 
CLIFTON, PENRITH, CA10 2EN

21/0610 Tree Works (CA) Mr L ScottPenrith APPROVEDRemoval of Tree A (Cypress)  and Tree B Reduce 
Crown.

BRIAR COTTAGE, LOWTHER 
STREET, PENRITH, CA11 7UF

21/0625 Notice of Intention Mr J HollidayClifton APPROVEDPermitted Development Prior Notification for an 
agricultural storage building.

LAND EAST OF BRIDGE END FARM, 
CLIFTON, PENRITH, CA10 2EA

21/0629 Non-Material 
Amend

Mr & Mrs BanksGreat Strickland APPROVEDNon Material Amendment to reduce the building plan 
and relocate entrance, attached to approval 21/0221.

SCHOOL HOUSE, GREAT 
STRICKLAND, PENRITH, CA10 3DF

06 August 2021 Page 6 of 7

P
age  10



App No DescriptionParish DecisionApp Type Location Applicant

In relation to each application it was considered whether the proposal was appropriate having regard to the Development Plan, the representations which were received 
including those from consultees and all other material considerations.  In cases where the application was approved the proposal was considered to be acceptable in planning 
terms having regard to the material considerations.  In cases where the application was refused the proposal was not considered to be acceptable having regard to the material 
and relevant considerations.  In all cases it was considered whether the application should be approved or refused and what conditions, if any, should be imposed to secure an 
acceptable form of development.

06 August 2021 Page 7 of 7

P
age  11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

www.eden.gov.uk  Oliver Shimell LLB 
Assistant Director Development 
 

Notice of Decision 
 
 
 
To: Kate Bellwood Associates - Kate Bellwood 

Midtown Farm 
Little Strickland 
Penrith 

 CA10 3EG 
 
 

Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) Order 2015 

Application No: 21/0491 
On Behalf Of: Mr G Hedley 
 
In pursuance of their powers under the above Act and Order, Eden District Council, as 
local planning authority, hereby REFUSE full planning permission for the development 
described in your application and on the plans and drawings attached thereto, viz: 
 
Application Type: Full Application 
Proposal: Change of use of holiday let to dwelling. 
Location:     BRIDGE END COTTAGE    EAMONT BRIDGE  PENRITH  CA10 

2BH 
 

The reason(s) for this decision are: 
 
1. The application site remains integrally linked to Bridge End Cottage, and a 
permanent residential occupation of the site would result in unacceptable standards of 
overlooking, privacy and residential amenity to future occupants of the application site. 
The proposal fails to protect the privacy of the future occupants of the application site due 
to insufficient separation distance from opposing clear glazed window openings and 
elevated overlooking of the external garden area as part of the application site, resulting in 
unacceptable standards of residential amenity. As such, the proposal fails to accord with 
Policy DEV5 of the Eden Local Plan 2014-32, and is contrary to Section 12 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2018, in particular paragraph 127, which states ‘Planning 
policies and decisions should ensure that developments… create places that are safe, 
inclusive and accessible and which promote health and well-being, with a high standard of 
amenity for existing and future users…’. 
  
Where necessary the local planning authority has worked with the applicant in a positive and 
proactive manner seeking solutions to problems arising in relation to dealing with the planning 
application and to implement the requirements of the NPPF and the adopted development plan. 

 
Date of Decision: 12 July 2021 
 
Signed: 

Carriage Return 

Mansion House, Penrith, Cumbria  CA11 7YG 
Tel: 01768 817817 

Page  13



 

www.eden.gov.uk 2 

 
Oliver Shimell LLB 
Assistant Director Development 
 
 

Page  14



 

www.eden.gov.uk  

Town Hall, Penrith, Cumbria  CA11 7QF 
Tel: 01768 817817 

Oliver Shimell LLB 
Assistant Director Development 

 

Email: loc.plan@eden.gov.uk 
Direct dial: (01768) 212159 

Tree Preservation Order 
Notice of Decision 
 
 
To: Sylvia Mallinson 

31  CUMBERLAND CLOSE 
CLIFTON 
PENRITH 
CA10 2EN 

 

Application Ref: 21/0588 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
Town and Country Planning (Trees) Regulations 1999, 2008 and 2012 

Tree Preservation Order Application To Carry Out Works To Protected Trees 

I refer to your application dated 23 June 2021 to carry out work to a tree(s) protected 
within the above Order at     31  Cumberland Close    Clifton  Penrith: 
Works to Sycamore subject to a TPO. 

DECISION: In pursuance of their powers under the above Act and Regulations, Eden 
District Council, as local planning authority, hereby REFUSE permission for the tree 
work proposal described in your application and on the plans and drawings attached 
thereto.  The reason(s) for this decision are: 

1. The proposed pollarding works are excessive and contrary to current best 
practice as defined in section 7 British Standard BS 3999:2010 Tree works – 
Recommendations. 

2. The proposed works will result in excessively large wounds and a substantial 
loss of leaf are adversely affecting the physiological condition of the tree leading to its 
early decline and death. 

3. The proposed works will result in a tree of a much reduced size and unnatural 
form negatively affecting the visual amenity of the location and its enjoyment by the 
public. 

4. The removal of epicormic shoots has consent by virtue of the decision 
associated with application 18/0953, which is sufficient to reduce the problems being 
experienced due to the epicormic shoots and remains extant. 
 
Your Right of Appeal 
If you disagree with the decision of the Council or the attachment of any conditions you 
can appeal to the Secretary of State for the Environment via the Planning Inspectorate. 
All appeals must be made in writing within 28 days from the date you receive the 
Councils decision. The Secretary of State has the discretion to allow a longer period.  
 
Appeals are handled by the Planning Inspectorate (PINS). The1999 Regulations have 
been amended so that as from 1 October 2008 a fasttrack appeal procedure replaces 
the previous handling of appeals through the submission of written representations. In 
practice most cases will therefore be dealt with on the basis of the original application 

Page  15



www.eden.gov.uk 2 

and its supporting information, the decision of the LPA and the reasons they gave 
when making that decision. The inspector may, however, ask for further information. 
Either party may if they wish have the appeal dealt with at a hearing or public local 
inquiry. 
 
When giving notice of appeal to PINS, the appellant must at the same time send a 
copy of that notice to the Council that made the original decision. 
 
Appeals should be sent in writing to: 
The Planning Inspectorate, The Environment Appeals Team, Trees and Hedges, 
Room 3/25 Hawk Wing, Temple Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol 
BS1 6PN 
Tel: 0303 444 5000 
e-mail: environment.appeals@pins.gsi.gov.uk 
Web: www.planning-inspectorate.gov.uk/pins/appeals/tree_preservation/index.htm 
 
Compensation 
If you suffer any loss or damage as a direct consequence of the decision made by the 
Council, or by the attachment of any conditions, you may be entitled to recover from 
the Council compensation in respect of such loss or damage.  If you wish to make a 
claim you must do so within 12 months from the date of this decision.  Claims should 
be submitted in writing to:  Head of Planning Services, Eden District Council, Mansion 
House, Penrith CA11 7YG. 
 

 
Oliver Shimell LLB 
Assistant Director Development 
Date of Decision:  23 July 2021

 

Page  16



 

www.eden.gov.uk  Oliver Shimell LLB 
Assistant Director Development 
 

Notice of Decision 
 
 
 
To: Mr A Thompson 

Hewer Hill Farm 
Hesket Newmarket 
Wigton 

 CA7 8HZ 
 
 

Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) Order 2015 

Application No: 21/0209 
On Behalf Of: Mr A Thompson 
 
In pursuance of their powers under the above Act and Order, Eden District Council, as 
local planning authority, hereby REFUSE full planning permission for the development 
described in your application and on the plans and drawings attached thereto, viz: 
 
Application Type: Full Application 
Proposal: Change of use of agricultural land for the siting of 4 static holiday 

accommodation huts and 2 No. caravan pitches, change of use of 
stable block to shower and toilet facilities, installation of sewerage 
treatment plant, associated works and creation of new access track 

Location:     CHERRY TREES    HESKET NEWMARKET  WIGTON  CA7 8HZ 
 

The reason(s) for this decision are: 
 
1. The proposed holiday accommodation site and access track occupies a prominent 
elevated location within the rural countryside landscape, without hedgerows or trees to 
provide any meaningful screening of the site from wider public view. These developments, 
structures and associated domestic paraphernalia would cumulatively appear incongruent 
and conspicuous due to the sloping topography and lack of screening when viewed within 
the context of the wider open countryside area. The domestication of this plot visible from 
public vantage points at both close proximity and from wider visual aspects would harm 
the surrounding rural landscape and detract from this setting. The proposal fails to protect 
or enhance the district’s distinctive rural landscape, and it therefore conflicts with Policies 
EC4, DEV5 and ENV2 of the Eden Local Plan 2014-32, and is contrary to Sections 12 and 
15 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2021, in particular paragraphs 130 and 174. 
  
2. The proposal has failed to demonstrate a suitable site vehicular access, parking 
provision, access track and visibility splays necessary to avoid any unacceptable impacts 
upon highway safety and local traffic conditions. As such, the proposal is contrary to 
Policies EC4 and DEV3 of the Eden Local Plan 2014-32 and Section 9 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2021, in particular paragraphs 110 and 111. 
  
Where necessary the local planning authority has worked with the applicant in a positive and 
proactive manner seeking solutions to problems arising in relation to dealing with the planning 
application and to implement the requirements of the NPPF and the adopted development plan. 

Carriage Return 

Mansion House, Penrith, Cumbria  CA11 7YG 
Tel: 01768 817817 

Page  17



 

www.eden.gov.uk 2 

 
Date of Decision: 29 July 2021 
 
Signed: 

 
Oliver Shimell LLB 
Assistant Director Development 
 
 

Page  18



Agenda Index 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

Eden District Council 

Planning Committee Agenda 
Committee Date: 19 August 2021 

INDEX 

Item 
No 

Application Details 
Officer 
Recommendation 

1 Planning Application No: 21/0252 

Erection of a dwelling including associated operations 

Land north of the Rectory, Greystoke, CA11 0TJ 

Mr N Richards 

Recommended to: 

REFUSE 
With Reasons 

2 Planning Application No: 20/0424 

Change of Use of agricultural land for the siting of 73 lodge 
style caravans, landscaping and ancillary works 

Ullswater Heights Holiday Homes and lodge Park, Silver 
Howe, Flusco 

Leisure Resorts Ltd 

Recommended to: 

APPROVE 
Subject to Conditions 

3 Planning Application No: 20/0404 

Proposed residential dwelling 

Land at Gloucester Yard, Penrith 

Mr and Mrs Naylor 

Recommended to: 

APPROVE 
Subject to Conditions 

Page  19

Agenda Item 7



Agenda Index 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 Page  20



Agenda Item 1 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

 

Date of Committee: 19 August 2021 

Planning Application No: 21/0252 Date Received: 12 March 2021 

OS Grid Ref: NY 344329, 
530940 

Expiry Date: 7 May 2020 (time 

extension agreed for 26 

August 2021) 

Parish: Greystoke Ward: Greystoke 

Application Type: Planning Permission 

Proposal: Erection of a dwelling including associated operations 

Location: Land north of the Rectory, Greystoke, CA11 0TJ 

Applicant: Mr N Richards 

Agent: Addis Town Planning 

Case Officer: Andrew Clement 

Reason for Referral: Proposal has been called in on material planning grounds by 
the Ward Member for Greystoke. 

 

 

 

Page  21



Agenda Item 1 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

 

 

 

Page  22



Agenda Item 1 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

1. Recommendation 

It is recommended that planning permission be REFUSED for the following reasons: 

 The proposed dwellinghouse, use of land as domestic curtilage and potential 
loss of trees would cause considerable harm to the setting of listed buildings, 
resulting in moderate harm to the significance of these national heritage assets. 
There are insufficient public benefits to the proposal to outweigh this harm, nor 
any clear or convincing justification for such harm, which fails to conserve the 
significance of these listed buildings. As such, the proposal is contrary to Policy 
ENV10 of the of the Eden Local Plan 2014-32 and contrary to Sections 16 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework 2021, in particular paragraphs 195, 
197, 199, 200, 202. 

 The proposal fails to demonstrate or mitigate the potential impacts of the sought 
development upon mature and protected trees within and around the site. The 
failure to take account of such protected trees that contribute positively to the 
local landscape character and visual amenity, and resultant potential harm to 
these trees that should be retained due to their protection and retention value, 
is contrary to Policies ENV2 and DEV5 of the of the Eden Local Plan 2014-32 
and contrary to Sections 12 and 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework 
2021, in particular paragraphs 131 and 174. 

2. Proposal and Site Description 

2.1 Proposal 

2.1.1 This application seeks planning permission for the erection of a detached 
dwellinghouse, with circa 310sq.m gross internal floorspace, including the double 
detached garage and three first floor en-suite bedrooms all with walk-in wardrobes. 
The proposed dwellinghouse measures a maximum of 17.9 metres long by 17.9 
metres wide, with a maximum ridge height of 7.05 metres tall and a 4.6 metre eaves 
height, finished in natural grey slate roof above light grey rendered walls with box eave 
dormers and canopy features. The site’s access would run across from the west of the 
site, with the site development area and sought domestic curtilage incorporating land 
up to the existing private access track tarmac edge, domesticating an area measuring 
over 3,400sq.m (over a third of a hectare, almost 0.85 acres). 

2.2 Site Description 

2.2.1 The site that forms the subject of this application is an irregular shaped field containing 
large mature trees, which is situated to the southeast of a property known as Blue Hills, 
and adjacent to the historic entrance driveway that leads to the Grade II Listed Building 
known as The Old Rectory, located approximately 65 metres away to the east of the 
proposed dwellinghouse. 

2.2.2 The Old Rectory is an early 19th century substantial two storey dwelling in L-shape 
form, finished in pink sandstone snecked ashlar walls, with angle pilasters, under 
hipped graduated greenslate roof with ashlar chimney stacks, featuring sash windows 
and projecting bays. The main entrance to The Old Rectory is to the west, immediately 
south of the application site. The Old Rectory has historical connections and physical 
links to the Church of St Andrew, a Grade II* listed building and one time college for 
priests dating back to the 13th century finished in dressed mixed red, pink and cream 
sandstone, with string courses, parapet and angle buttresses with finials, all on 
chamfered plinth under a graduated greenslate roofs. 

Page  23



Agenda Item 1 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

2.2.3 The site contains a number of mature trees protected by tree preservation orders, 
which previously formed an even more substantial woodlands approach to The Old 
Rectory Listed Building. The site rises steadily from the private road to the west and 
south of the site to a high point circa 3.6 metres above the road to the northeast corner 
within the site, with for the sought dwellinghouse slightly set into this sloping elevated 
land. A public bridleway no.326004 runs to the west of the site from the vehicular 
access point from the B5288 road southwards to St Andrew’s Church past The Rectory 
and Old Church House. This vehicular access point is within Flood Zone 3, however 
the elevated application site is within Flood Zone 1. 

3. Consultees 

3.1 Statutory Consultees 

Consultee Response 

Highway Authority No objection subject to the implementation of 
access, parking and turning areas prior to first use. 

Lead Local Flood Authority No objection 

3.2 Discretionary Consultees 

Consultee Response 

Conservation Officer Objection, a new dwelling within the proposed site 
is considered will result in considerable harm to the 
setting of the grade II listed building The Old 
Rectory, due to location, design and lack of visual 
separation or mitigation, and potential to cause 
disturbance to archaeological assets. 

United Utilities No objection subject to drainage planning conditions 

Environmental Health No observation received 

Minerals and waste No observation received 

Arboriculturalist Objection, as it is likely that the extent of the harm 
arising from the works will result in the decline and 
premature death of the retained protected trees, 
which are large mature specimens which make a 
significant contribution to the character of the 
location. Any changes to the levels would result in a 
negative impact on the retained trees, which has 
been exacerbated by amendments to the proposal. 
Insufficient information within the submitted tree 
survey to demonstrate that protected trees will not 
be harmed by the proposed development. 

4. Parish/Town Council Response 

 Please Tick as Appropriate 

Parish Council Object Support No Response 
No View 

Expressed 

Greystoke     

Page  24



Agenda Item 1 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

5. Representations 

5.1 Letters of consultation were sent to nearby neighbours and a site notice was posted on 
14 April 2021. 

No of Neighbours Consulted 6 No of letters of support 0 

No of Representations Received 0 No of neutral representations 0 

No of objection letters 6   

5.2 Letters of objection raised the following material considerations to the application: 

 Harmful impact upon the setting of heritage assets and lack of public benefit to 
outweigh this harm 

 Greenfield site outside of Greystoke key hub area 

 Loss of prominent trees and associated impact on habitats and ecological harm 

 Inappropriateness of private road to be used for access to an additional 
dwellinghouse 

 Incongruent materials from outside the local area 

 Noise and light pollution during construction and from the access point 

 Overlooking and privacy residential amenity impact concerns 

5.3 Letters of objection raised the following non-material considerations: 

 Previous applications at the site refused 

 Precedent for further development 

6. Relevant Planning History 

Application No Description Outcome 

15/5117 Alleged construction of unauthorised 
access track potentially damaging 
protected trees 

Resolved through 
remedial works 24 
July 2017 

13/0486 Construction of a single low carbon 
dwelling 

WITHDRAWN 4 
December 2013 

13/0071 Construction of two dwellings WITHDRAWN 8 
March 2013 

11/1006 – at 
nearby site to the 
south 

Development of field to provide 2 
dwellings. 

REFUSED 5 
January 2012 

03/0174 – at 
nearby site to the 
south 

Change of use from grazing to residential REFUSED 22 
July 2003 and 
DISMISSED at 
appeal 5 May 
2004 

7. Policy Context 

7.1 Development Plan 

Eden Local Plan (2014-32) 

Page  25



Agenda Item 1 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

 Policy LS1 Locational Strategy 

 Policy LS2 Housing Targets and Distribution 

 Policy RUR1 A Plan for the Key Hubs 

 Policy DEV1 General Approach to New Development 

 Policy DEV2 Water Management and Flood Risk 

 Policy DEV3 Transport, Accessibility and Rights of Way 

 Policy DEV5 Design of New Development 

 Policy HS4 Housing Type and Mix 

 Policy ENV1 Protection and Enhancement of the Natural Environment, 
Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

 Policy ENV2 Protection and Enhancements of Landscapes and Trees 

 Policy ENV10 The Historic Environment 

7.2 Other Material Considerations 

National Planning Policy Framework (2021): 

 Chapter 2. Achieving Sustainable Development 

 Chapter 4. Decision making 

 Chapter 5. Delivering a sufficient supply of homes 

 Chapter 7. Ensuring the vitality of town centres 

 Chapter 8. Promoting healthy and safe communities 

 Chapter 12. Achieving well-designed places 

 Chapter 14. Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change 

 Chapter 15. Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 

 Chapter 16. Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 

Listed Building and Conservation Areas Act 1990 

 Section 7 - Restriction on Works Affecting Listed Buildings 

The Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation)(England) Regulations 2012 

Supplementary Planning Documents: 

 Housing (2010 and 2020) 

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 

National Model Design Code 

7.3 The policies and guidance detailed above are the most relevant policies relating to this 
application. 

8. Planning Assessment 

8.1 Key/Main Planning Issues 

 Principle 

 Self and Custom Build 

 Landscape and Visual Impacts upon the setting of Heritage Assets 

 Scale and Design 

 Ecology, Trees and Habitats 

 Residential Amenity and Noise 

 Infrastructure and Drainage 

 Highways and Parking 

Page  26



Agenda Item 1 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

8.2 Principle 

8.2.1 Policy LS1 of the Eden Local Plan sets the settlement hierarchy where the Council 
expects the focus for residential, employment and commercial provision. Key Hubs will 
be the focus for development to sustain local services appropriate to the scale of the 
village and its hinterland, including new housing, the provision of employment and 
improvements to accessibility. 

8.2.2 Policy LS2 of the Eden Local Plan sets out future development rates in town and 
villages to achieve the overall annual housing target. Thirteen ‘Key Hubs’ have been 
identified where we expect modest amounts of market led development to occur, to 
help meet local need and enable services to be protected and enhanced. The list of 
key hubs identified is fixed until any future review of the Local Plan. 

8.2.3 Policy RUR1 of the Eden Local Plan aims to deliver 871 new homes and 2.92ha 
employment land for the Key Hubs. 

8.2.4 Policy DEV1 of the Eden Local Plan advises that the Council will always work 
proactively with applicants to find solutions which mean the proposals can be approved 
wherever possible, and to secure developments that improves economic, social and 
environmental conditions in the area. 

8.2.5 This application seeks planning permission for the erection of a single detached 
dwellinghouse on land adjacent to Greystoke village, which is a designated Key Hub. 
This is considered to be a modest amount of market led development, beneath the 
scale of development necessitating an affordable housing contribution. The district has 
a sufficient housing land supply, with a demonstrated 7.33 year housing land supply 
against the Local Plan housing requirement, and other residential developments may 
be constructed locally such as the one proposed. The delivery of housing is still 
attributed positive weight in a planning balance due to economic and social benefits, 
and a wider national shortage of housing provision. However, there is no additional 
weight to be applied through a tilted balance in favour of granting development due to a 
sufficient and evidenced supply of housing land within the district. 

8.2.6 The Design and Access Statement intimates personal circumstances for developing 
the site in relation to employment at an adjacent rural equestrian business. However, 
these have not been substantiated as an essential rural worker, and as such, the 
application has not been considered against Policy HS3. The personal circumstances 
of the applicants are not a material consideration in the determination of this planning 
application. 

8.2.7 There are several residential properties currently advertised for sale in Greystoke, with 
a further 40 dwellings under construction just over a 100 metres from the application 
site, plus land with consent for single dwellinghouses currently advertised for sale in 
Penruddock less than 2.5 miles from the application site. In this regard, it is considered 
reasonable to suggest that there is suitable alternative provision for existing, new and 
potential development sites in the vicinity. A plan-led approach is taken to the lawful 
determination of planning applications, with NPPF paragraph 15 stating that ‘The 
planning system should be genuinely plan-led’. The following two paragraphs will 
assess the merits of the site for the principle of residential development of a single 
dwellinghouse, against the policy requirements of the Local Plan. 

8.2.8 Residential development within such Key Hubs is a focus for development to sustain 
local services. Greystoke contains a number of local services, including a public house, 
post office, school, church, swimming pool and other leisure facilities. This level of 

Page  27



Agenda Item 1 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

services and facilities are similar to other designated Key Hubs within the district, and 
whilst public transport service is infrequent in this area, an additional dwellinghouse 
would make a modest contribution to the sustainability of local services. This is 
considered to be a sustainable location for residential development in accordance with 
the locational strategy for development, due to the services and facilities within walking 
distance from the site, with pavements between these services and the bridleway 
adjacent to the site. 

8.2.9 Whilst some public consultation responses have contested that the site is outside of 
Greystoke and within ‘other rural areas’, given the proximity to the village church, 
walking facilities to the centre, and a much larger scale residential development 
currently under construction to the north of the B5288 forming the eastern end of the 
village, it is considered that the site is reasonably part of the Key Hub of Greystoke. As 
such, the proposal is considered to be a sustainable location for development, in 
accordance with Policies LS1, LS2, RUR1 and DEV1 of the Local Plan, and the 
principle of the development is considered to be acceptable. The delivery of a single 
dwellinghouse as part of the Key Hub such as this is considered to attribute positive 
weight in terms of economic and social benefits of a sustainable dwellinghouse, in a 
location to support local services and help achieve the delivery of suitable housing 
supply in the district. 

8.2.10 Therefore, for the reasons detailed above, it is considered that the principle of the 
development of a residential dwelling in this location is acceptable subject to further 
assessment of all other material considerations. 

8.3 Self and Custom Build 

8.3.1 This proposal is for planning permission for a single dwellinghouse, considered to be a 
Self-Build and Custom House build house designed by whomever developed the land 
for their initial occupation. 

8.3.2 The Self-Build and Custom Housebuilding Act 2015 places a duty on Authorities to 
grant enough suitable permissions on serviced plots to meet the need set out in the 
self-build register, for each year, within 3 years. Self-build and Custom build housing is 
defined as housing built by an individual, a group of individuals, or persons working 
with or for them, to be occupied by that individual. Such housing can be either market 
or affordable housing. 

8.3.3 Eden District Council has been able to demonstrate sufficient self-build permissions to 
meet the registered demand, since the end of the first register base period. The 
legislation requires that all authorities must have granted sufficient planning consents 
for enough serviced plots, which are suitable for self and custom build to meet the 
demand for the period (demand is measured by the number of people joining the 
Council’s Self Build and Custom Build Housing Register). 

8.3.4 Eden District Council granted planning permission for sufficient properties within the 
register base period which fulfil the requirements of self and custom build development. 
The latest figures reported on 30 October 2020 marks four years since the end of the 
first register base period. The legislation requires that all authorities must have granted 
sufficient planning consents for enough serviced plots, which are suitable for self and 
custom build to meet the demand from the register. Between the 1st April 2016 and the 
30th October 2020, Eden District Council received 111 applicants for entry onto its 
register. In response to this demand, Eden District Council has granted planning 
permission for 163 confirmed self and custom build dwellings in the period 1 April 2016 

Page  28



Agenda Item 1 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

to 30 October 2020.The Council has therefore, met and exceeded the requirements of 
the legislation by having sufficient self-build permissions to meet the registered 
demand for the preceding couple of years. 

8.3.5 Whilst the requirement for providing self-build and custom build housing is 
acknowledged, such developments must be in accordance with the policies of the 
Local Plan as a whole. The requirement to provide self-build developments should 
rightly be afforded weight in the planning balance. However, the self build nature of the 
proposal does not attract such overriding weight that it should outweigh fundamental 
planning policies directing where the Council will accept residential development. 

8.3.6 The Council is supportive of self-build and custom build housing and will continue to 
meet the required self-build permissions and comply with the Self-Build and Custom 
Housebuilding Act 2015. Furthermore, the Council does consider that weight should be 
given to self or custom build proposals in line with National Requirements. As such, the 
self-build nature of this proposal gains moderate additional weight in favour of the 
proposal. Whilst weight is rightly afforded to the self and custom build nature of the 
proposal, in light of the above it is considered that moderate weight should be attached 
to the self-build and custom build requirements of the Council in the determination of 
this planning application. 

8.4 Landscape and Visual Impacts upon the setting of Heritage Assets 

8.4.1 Section 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Policy DEV5 of the 
Eden Local Plan seeks to ensure that all new development is of an appropriately high 
quality design, which shows a clear understanding of the form and character of the 
locality. 

8.4.2 Section 16 of the NPPF and Policy ENV10 of the Eden Local Plan attaches great 
weight to the conservation and enhancement of the historic environment, heritage 
assets and their setting, requiring all proposals for development to conserve or 
enhance the significance of heritage assets and their setting. In accordance with the 
Listed Building and Conservation Areas Act, when considering any application that 
affects a Listed Building, a Conservation Area or their setting, the local planning 
authority must pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the 
character or appearance of the heritage asset or its setting. This is reiterated by policy 
ENV10. 

8.4.3 The application site is within close proximity to several Listed Buildings within 170 
metres of the site, adjacent to and accessed from a bridleway that forms a key access 
to St Andrew’s Church and the primary public viewpoint of The Old Rectory. These are 
Grade II* and Grade II Listed Buildings respectively, of national heritage importance 
and some of the 400,000 most important heritage buildings nationally. 

8.4.4 The setting of The Old Rectory and northern bridleway approach to St Andrew’s 
Church clearly contributes positively to the setting of these two heritage assets, as 
does the visibility of The Old Rectory through the existing grassland and tree strewn 
site, demonstrating the former connection between these two heritage assets as a 
house where the rector of the church lived. This land and existing approach to The Old 
Rectory is important to the setting of this heritage asset in itself, and clearly formed a 
woodland access to the property dating back to the First OS Map circa 1860, 
maintained as such other the following 100 years, and remaining as a visual setting of 
grassland and substantial mature trees to date. The site forms a key aspect of the 
aesthetic value of the heritage asset, and the primary public viewpoint of this heritage 

Page  29



Agenda Item 1 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

asset as the public bridleway continues southwards to the west of the (new) Rectory 
towards St Andrew’s Church. 

8.4.5  The proposal seeks a new residential dwellinghouse within the proposed site, removing 
at least one of the existing trees and forming a vehicular access towards the highest 
topography point of the site for the siting of a new, modern design dwellinghouse. 
Whilst the design appears 1.5 storeys, and the submitted Heritage Assessment states 
this is a ‘largely single-storey dwelling, designed to be low lying’, the height from base 
to ridge is 7.05 metres tall, which is just 10cm short than the maximum ridge height of 
the two storey dwellinghouse to the west known as Crayside. Combined with the 
elevated topography of the site and contemporary design of the proposal, the 
residential development sought would have a much more imposing visual impact that 
neighbouring dwellinghouses of Crayside or The Rectory, despite being marginally 
shorter to the ridge as proposed. 

8.4.6 Amended plans received seek to lower ground levels marginally, but this would still 
have a base of development elevated by circa 1.5 metres above the adjacent private 
road and public viewpoints from the bridleway, with a ridge line approximatel6 8.55 
metres above this viewpoint. The dwellinghouse would be clearly visible in a prominent 
and conspicuous location in the foreground of The Old Rectory and approach to the 
Church of St Andrew. The close proximity of the proposed dwelling, circa 65 metres 
from The Old Rectory Listed Building, and its location on higher ground within the site 
along combined with its proposed height and scale would result in the proposed 
dwelling being prominent in views both to and from this Listed Building. 

8.4.7 Furthermore, and as important as the negative impacts upon heritage setting as the 
building itself, is the vast domestic curtilage and associated domestic paraphernalia 
that would change the intrinsic character of the site, which runs up to the private 
access track tarmac edge to the circa 2 metre tall hedge between the application site 
and the curtilage of The Old Rectory. The proposed dwellinghouse and use of the 
entire site as domestic curtilage associated with this would undoubtedly detract from 
the important contribution this site makes to the setting of this heritage assets as 
existing. This negative impact would be exacerbated by the required loss of a tree 
adjacent to the sought access, making the proposed development even more 
prominent. 

8.4.8 The retention of the existing circa 2 metre tall hedge and protected trees is insufficient 
to mitigate this impact nor separate the development impacts from the setting of the 
Listed Buildings. The site as existing, is characterised as open land containing 
grassland and mature trees, which has important connotations to the historic approach 
to the site, and makes an important contribution to the setting of this heritage asset. 
Similarly, the loose knit layout of existing dwellinghouses bordering open land in a 
spacious nature of development was highlighted as an important characteristic by a 
planning inspector in the dismissal of planning appeal APP/H0928/A/03/1135210, 
albeit when dismissing residential development immediately south of the site in 2004, 
also within the village of Greystoke. The proposal is considered to undermine the 
character of the area and setting of the national heritage assets. 

8.4.9 The Listed Building and Conservation Areas Act 1990 and relevant local and national 
planning policies stipulate that great weight should be attached to the conservation and 
enhancement of the historic environment, heritage assets and their setting. In this 
instance, this great weight clearly weighs against the proposed development of the site 
in a planning balance determination. The development of a residential dwellinghouse at 

Page  30



Agenda Item 1 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

close proximity on an elevated site, and change of use of existing grassland and trees 
to form part of a significant scale domestic curtilage, will cumulatively have a 
detrimental and demonstrably harmful effect on land that has historically and currently 
makes a positive contribution to the setting of such heritage assets, which cannot be 
said for the proposed development and use. 

8.4.10 This assessment is shared by the Conservation Officer, whom concluded that the 
proposal would cause considerable harm to the setting of heritage assets, resulting in 
moderate harm to the significance of heritage assets. Any such harm requires clear 
and convincing justification, weighed against the public benefits of the proposal. Such a 
planning balance assessment will form the conclusion of this report. However, the 
identified harm to heritage assets is considered to weigh greatly against this proposal, 
which is considered to be contrary to the requirements of Policy ENV10 and NPPF 
Section 16, in particular paragraphs 195, 197, 199, 200, 202. 

8.4.11 Finally, it is noted that the development of the site has the potential to cause 
disturbance to archaeological assets relating to the medieval development of the 
village. However, this element could be satisfactorily resolved with an archaeological 
written scheme of investigation prior to commencement, with such investigation 
implemented during groundworks. 

8.5 Scale and Design 

8.5.1 Section 12 of the NPPF and Policy DEV5 of the Eden Local Plan seeks to ensure that 
all new development is of an appropriately high quality design, which shows a clear 
understanding of the form and character of the locality. 

8.5.2 The proposed development offers accommodation across two floors, with a footprint of 
over 180sq.m creating a gross internal floorspace of circa 310sq.m, under a maximum 
ridge height of over 7 metres tall. Whilst the first floor space is partly between the ridge 
and eaves of the property, the scale of development is not that of a bungalow, but a 
large two storey dwellinghouse. The design of the property is bespoke and 
contemporary, with unique use of canopies and contemporary features including box 
eaves dormers. 

8.5.3 Whilst Greystoke as a whole contains a number of terraced and semi-detached 
properties, with traditional large detached properties, the immediate vicinity of the 
application site is characterised by large detached two storey dwellinghouses in a 
spacious low density with open space between properties. Furthermore, each of the 
properties in the immediate vicinity has unique architectural features, using a mix of 
render, red sandstone and brick wall external elevations with reasonable complex roof 
forms of perpendicular ridges, lean-to projections, gable and hipped roofs, and even a 
cone atop a cylindrical two storey porch. 

8.5.4 In this setting, from a design and scale perspective there is scope for a larger dwelling 
introducing alternative design features into the vicinity to appear congruent in this 
setting of similar scale properties designed individually, where there is no coherent 
streetscene vernacular or architecture as existing. Given the scale of the roofscape of 
the proposal and elevated position of the sought property, use of high quality natural 
roof material would be a key requirement given this visual prominence of this feature. 
As such, notwithstanding the negative impacts upon the setting of heritage assets due 
to proximity and juxtaposition of the contemporary design outlined in the previous 
section, the design and scale of the dwelling is considered to be consistent and 

Page  31



Agenda Item 1 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

congruent to the visual context and streetscene when considered outside of these 
heritage sensitivities of the site. 

8.6 Ecology, Trees and Habitats 

8.6.1 Section 12 and 15 of the NPPF and Policy ENV2 of the Eden Local Plan, requires 
proposals to take account of and complement natural elements, such as hedgerows, 
woodland and local topography and the tranquillity of the open countryside, and take 
account of and complement anthropogenic landscape elements, including settlement 
form, local architectural styles and building materials, and visually sensitive skylines, in 
accordance with the Cumbrian Landscape Assessment Toolkit. 

8.6.2 Within the Eden Local Plan, Policy ENV1 requires new development to avoid loss or 
deliver net gain in levels biodiversity and geodiversity, affording significant weight and 
the highest levels of protection to local, national and internationally important 
designated environmental sites. 

8.6.3 The application site is characterised by grassland and a number of mature trees, the 
majority of which are protected by tree preservation orders, including 6 individually 
protected trees in or immediately around the site, in addition to a group of trees 
protected within the northern boundary of the site under a grouped tree preservation 
order. These trees and others within the site are considered to make a considerable 
positive to the area and setting of heritage assets. 

8.6.4 Whilst a tree survey detailing the location and calculated root protection areas of trees 
has been submitted with this application, this does not include an arboricultural impact 
assessment nor method statement to demonstrate that the proposal would not harm 
nor result in the loss of protected trees either through the development of the 
dwellinghouse/hardsurfacing or through construction practices during development. 
One tree will certainly be removed to facilitate the creation of the vehicular access to 
the site, however this tree is in poor condition as detailed within the submitted tree 
survey, and will need to be felled irrespective of the proposed development at the site. 

8.6.5 Whilst the loss of a single category U tree is recommended within the tree survey 
irrespective of the proposal, the retention of all other trees on site is an important 
consideration of this proposal, not just because of the protected nature of these trees, 
but also the important contribution these make to the visual amenity and characteristics 
of the area and setting of national heritage assets. The Council’s Arboriculturalist has 
raised concerns regarding the omission of an arboricultural impact assessment and 
method statement given the importance and protection of these trees, which has been 
exacerbated by the amended plans seeking changes in land levels around the 
dwellinghouse, which would result in further ground excavations and potential impacts 
upon the roof protection areas of these protected trees. 

8.6.6 The Council’s Arboriculturalist concludes that, due to very constrained space to 
building a house, any changes to the levels would result in a negative impact on the 
retained mature trees, which have a low tolerance to damage, as would the sought 
surfacing and levels of parking and turning areas. As such, given the lack of 
information for a dwellinghouse sought in such close proximity to these trees, the 
proposal has failed to evidence that the development would suitably avoid and mitigate 
any undue pressure and impacts upon the existing mature trees within and around the 
site, which could result in their decline and premature removal. These potential and 
likely negative impacts upon these large protected trees are considered to be harmful 
to the amenity and character of the location and setting of listed buildings, contrary to 

Page  32



Agenda Item 1 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

policies ENV2 and DEV5 of the Local Plan, and NPPF Sections 12 and 15, in particular 
paragraphs 131 and 174. 

8.6.7 The application site provides the potential for habitats and ecology, which would be 
impacted by the development of a dwellinghouse, hardsurfacing for accesses, 
domestication of such a large area and potential harmful impacts upon mature trees. 
Whilst additional habitats and mitigation would be required to ensure biodiversity net 
gain, from this ecological perspective the impacts are able to be mitigated through soft 
landscaping that could be controlled through planning condition. 

8.7 Residential Amenity and Noise 

8.7.1 Within the Eden Local Plan, Policy DEV5, in part, seeks to ensure that all new 
development ‘protects the amenity of existing residents and business occupiers’. 

8.7.2 The proposed development is of ample scale, far in exceedance of the minimum 
standards of space, outlook and natural light required by the Nationally Described 
Space Standards, achieving generous standards of residential amenity for future 
occupants. Whilst some public consultation responses have raised concerns regarding 
impacts upon neighbouring amenity, at over 30 metres from the nearest existing 
dwellinghouse, the proposal would cause no undue harm with regards to overbearing, 
overshadowing nor overlooking impacts upon residential amenity at such distances. 

8.7.3 Public concerns have also been raised regarding the increase in vehicle movements 
and headlights in an unlit area, and whilst this may be noticeable to neighbours, these 
occasional passing’s by motor vehicles would not unduly impact residential amenity 
standards. However, given the nature of the site and proximity to dwellinghouses, a 
restriction on construction hours would be necessary and relevant to protect amenity 
standards during this more intensive phase of construction. Subject to such a planning 
condition, the proposal is considered to cause no undue impact upon residential 
amenity, in accordance with Policy DEV5 of the Eden Local Plan. 

8.8 Infrastructure and Drainage 

8.8.1 Policy DEV2 of the Eden Local Plan requires proposals to meet the sequential 
approach to development in flood risk areas, preventing inappropriate development 
areas at risk of flooding, whilst adhering to the hierarchy of surface water management. 

8.8.2 The site is located at the edge of the village of Greystoke, with other existing 
dwellinghouse, and whilst no information has been submitted regarding access to 
mains electricity, water, and gas or sewerage infrastructure, given the proximity to the 
existing property it is considered likely these could be provided either through mains 
connections or off-grid equivalents for foul drainage. 

8.8.3 Similarly, no information has been received regarding surface water drainage, other 
than the site plan detailing a soakaway. Whilst no information to evidence the feasibility 
of such a sustainable drainage system at this site is available, given the scale of the 
permeable grassland site, it is highly likely a suitable scheme could be engineered, and 
this could be controlled through a reserved matters stage as advised in the United 
Utilities consultation response. Therefore, despite the omission of information for 
consideration, it is considered that these matters could be satisfactorily controlled 
through planning conditions, compatible with Policy DEV2 of the Eden Local Plan. 

8.9 Highways and Parking 

8.9.1 Policy DEV3 seeks to direct development to locations accessible by public transport, to 
ensure that provide safe and convenient access for pedestrians, cyclists and disabled 

Page  33



Agenda Item 1 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

people, whilst preventing development that would result in a severe impact in terms of 
road safety and increased traffic congestion. 

8.9.2 The site access is directly onto a private road serving several dwellinghouses as 
existing and leading to an equestrian centre. The western section of this access forms 
a bridleway, used by walkers and horse riders and part of the public right of way 
network. Whilst visibility to the south of the sought access is only constrained by 
mature tree trunks, to the north the neighbour’s drystone boundary wall would restrict 
visibility from the access point to the bridleway and private road. 

8.9.3 That being said, this road only serves three dwellinghouses and the equestrian centre 
beyond this point (which is noted to be within the ownership of the applicant), and it is a 
short distance of the public highway, and the nature of the private road would result in 
a significant reduction in vehicle speeds travelling in the vicinity. In addition, given the 
existing presence of domestic vehicle access to this private road, the addition of the 
further proposed access is considered to have no undue harmful impact upon highway 
or public safety, nor unduly impact the functionality of the bridleway through the modest 
increase in vehicle movements associated with a single dwellinghouse. Therefore, 
subject to precise details of the access, surfacing and provision of parking and turning 
facilities prior to first use, as recommended by the Highway Authority consultee, the 
proposal would cause no harm to the public highway network or functionality and 
safety of the bridleway. 

8.9.4 A construction method statement would be necessary to ensure no blockage of this 
narrow private road during construction, and no harmful impact upon protected trees 
from construction activities, however this could be controlled through a pre-
commencement planning condition. The site offers suitable provision for parking and 
turning of vehicles within the site, and as such subject to suitable mitigation and 
management during the construction phase, the proposed development is considered 
to cause no undue harm to the highway, public safety nor the bridleway, compatible 
with Policy DEV3 of the Eden Local Plan. 

9. New Homes Bonus 

9.1 The prospect of receiving a Bonus is, in principle, capable of being taken into account 
as a ‘material consideration’ in determining a planning application. Whether potential 
Bonus payments are in fact a material consideration in relation to a particular 
application will depend on whether those payments would be used in a way which is 
connected to the application and to the use and development of land. For example, 
potential Bonus payments could be a material consideration if they were to be used to 
mitigate impacts resulting from development. But if the use to which the payments are 
to be put is unclear or is for purposes unrelated to the development concerned a 
decision maker would not be entitled to take them into account when making a decision 
on a planning application. In this particular case, there are no plans to use the New 
Homes Bonus arising from this application in connection with this development. 

10. Implications 

10.1 Legal Implications 

10.1.1 The following matters have been considered but no issues are judged to arise. 

10.2 Equality and Diversity 

10.2.1 The Council must have regard to the elimination of unlawful discrimination and 
harassment, and the promotion of equality under the Equality Act 2010. 

Page  34



Agenda Item 1 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

10.3 Environment 

10.3.1 The Council must have due regard to conserving bio-diversity under the Natural 
Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

10.4 Crime and Disorder 

10.4.1 Under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, the Council must have regard to the need to 
reduce crime and disorder in exercising any of its functions. 

10.5 Children 

10.5.1 Under the Children Act 2004, the Council has a duty to safeguard and promote the 
welfare of children in the exercise of any of its functions. 

10.6 Human Rights 

10.6.1 In determining applications, the Council must ensure that all parties get a fair hearing 
in compliance with the provisions of Article 6 under the European Convention on 
Human Rights, as now embodied in UK law in the Human Rights Act 1998. 

11. Conclusion 

11.1 It is considered that the proposal is contrary with the Development Plan for the 
following reasons which are not outweighed by material considerations: 

11.2 The proposal is considered to be compatible with the Council’s locational strategy for 
development, and the delivery of such a self-build dwellinghouse would deliver 
sustainable development through economic and social benefits of development and 
delivering upon the housing need within the district. These factors weigh in favour of 
the proposal, whilst the impacts upon residential amenity, public highway and ecology 
can be mitigated through planning conditions to ensure the proposal is neutral in these 
regards. 

11.3 However, due to the presence of mature protected trees across the site, its 
undeveloped nature and historical connections and present day setting in close 
proximity to national heritage assets, the site is sensitive to change and makes a 
positive contribution to the character and visual amenity of the area as existing. Both 
the trees and the heritage significance of listed buildings are protected by separate 
legislation, local planning policies and the National Planning Policy Framework. These 
state that trees should be retained wherever possible, and great weight should be 
given to the conservation of the significance of designated heritage assets such as 
Listed Buildings. 

11.4 Such harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal established in 
paragraph 11.2 of this report. However, in a planning balance assessment, and in 
consideration of the sufficient housing land supply and self-build sites within the district, 
these benefits are considered to fall a long way short of outweighing the permanent 
harm caused to the setting of national heritage assets and protected trees within and 
around the site. This is particularly the case for this proposal, as should the 
development cause harm and loss of further trees, this would exacerbate the heritage 
harm already identified through the proposed modern dwellinghouse development and 
domestication of a large area existing undeveloped grassland and trees, which makes 
a significant positive contribution to the setting of listed buildings as existing. 

11.5 Given the positive contribution the site makes to the visual amenity and character of 
the area, setting of national heritage assets and siting of substantial protected trees, 
the proposal fails to evidence how the site could be developed whilst having no undue 

Page  35



Agenda Item 1 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

impact upon protected trees. In any case, the dwellinghouse development and 
domestication of a large site as sought would harm the significance of national heritage 
assets through considerable harm to their setting in comparison to the existing site. 
Great weight is given to the conservation of the significance of heritage assets, which 
the proposal fails to achieve through the harm cause, which is not outweighed by the 
public benefits of the proposal in this case. 

11.6 Therefore, the application is recommended for refusal. 

Oliver Shimell 
Assistant Director Development 

Checked by or on behalf of the Monitoring Officer 04.08.2021 

Background Papers: Planning File 21/0252 

 

Page  36



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

Date of Committee: 19 August 2021 

Planning Application No: 20/0424 Date Received: 26 June 2020 

OS Grid Ref: 346348 529996 Expiry Date: 26 September 2020 
extension of time 
agreed until 24 
September 2021 

Parish: Dacre Ward: Dacre 

Application Type: Full 

Proposal: Change of Use of agricultural land for the siting of 73 lodge 
style caravans, landscaping and ancillary works 

Location: Ullswater Heights Holiday Homes and lodge Park, Silver 
Howe, Flusco 

Applicant: Leisure Resorts Ltd 

Agent: Miss Wendy Sockett 

Case Officer: Mr Ian Irwin 

Reason for Referral: The Officer recommendation is contrary to that of the Parish 
Council 

 

 

Page  37



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

 

Page  38



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

1. Recommendation 

That the application is granted subject to the completion of a s.106 legal agreement 
securing the following: 

a) A £6,600 financial contribution towards the Travel Plan Monitoring. 

And the following conditions: 

Time Limit for Commencement 

1. The development permitted shall be begun either before the expiration of three 
years from the date of this permission. 

 Reason: In order to comply with the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 

Approved Plans 

2. The development hereby granted shall be carried out strictly in accordance with 
the application form dated 25 June 2020 and the following details and plans 
hereby approved; 

i. Location Plan, ref. H2-190903-2, dated 10 June 2020; 

ii. Development Layout Plan, ref. H2-1900903-1, dated 10 June 2020; 

iii. Phase 2 Land Quality Assessment, ref. 4179R1, dated 6 May 2021; 

iv. Ecological Appraisal, ref. P20-114, dated June 2020; 

v. Economic Benefit Report, dated February 2019; 

vi. Flood Risk Assessment, Ullswater Heights Holiday Home and Lodge Park 
dated June 2020; 

vii. Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment, dated May 2020; 

viii. Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment, Viewpoint Photographs, dated 
May 2020; 

ix. Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment, Site Survey Photographs, dated 
May 2020; 

x. Planning, Economic, Design and Access Statement, dated June 2020; 

xi. Transport Assessment, ref. P1430-160320 Ullswater Transport Assessment, 
dated June 2020; 

xii. Travel Plan, ref. P1430-160320 Ullswater Travel Plan, dated June 2020; 

xiii. Desktop Preliminary Environmental Risk Assessment, ref. AEL-4491-PP1-
1011468, dated 19 October 2020; 

xiv. Microdrainage Results, dated 20 October 2020; 

xvii. Proposed Drainage Results, ref. 133201, Rev. 1, dated 19 October 2020; 

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory development and to avoid any ambiguity as to 
what constitutes the approved details. 

Prior to commencement 

3. Prior to the commencement of the development, details of a construction surface 
water management plan shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for 

Page  39



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

written approval. Once approved, those details shall be implemented for the 
duration of all construction works. 

 Reason: To ensure flood risk is not increased within the site or elsewhere. 

4. Prior to the commencement of this hereby approved development a scheme of 
hard and soft landscape planting shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The scheme shall include appropriate aftercare 
and management plans. Thereafter, the development shall be undertaken in 
accordance with the approved scheme, with all planting undertaken within the first 
available planting season. Any trees or other plants which die or are removed 
within the first five years following the implementation of the approved scheme 
shall be replaced during the next planting season. The landscape scheme 
proposed should be informed by the recommendations of the Ecological 
Appraisal, dated June 2020. 

 Reason: To protect the character and visual amenity of the area. 

5. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a foul and 
surface water drainage scheme, including a maintenance plan shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The surface water 
drainage scheme must include: 

(i) An investigation of the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning 
Practice Guidance (or any subsequent amendment thereof). This 
investigation shall include evidence of an assessment of ground conditions 
and the potential for infiltration of surface water; 

(ii) A restricted rate of discharge of surface water agreed with the local planning 
authority (if it is agreed that infiltration is discounted by the investigations); 
and 

(iii) A timetable for its implementation. 

 The approved scheme shall also be in accordance with the Non-Statutory 
Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any 
subsequent replacement national standards. 

 Reason: To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to 
manage the risk of flooding and pollution. 

6. Prior to the commencement of the hereby approved development, full details of 
an Ecological Mitigation and Management Plan shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority for written approval. The plan shall provide full details of how 
any potential impacts to any protected species that may be affected by the hereby 
approved development. Once approved, the plan shall be strictly adhered to for 
the duration of the development. 

 Reason: To ensure appropriate protection for protected species. 

7. Prior to the commencement of the hereby approved development, full details of 
the precise design of the lodges to be constructed upon site, including details of 
construction materials and finishes, shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for written approval. Once approved, those details shall be adhered to 
for the lifetime of the development. 

 Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity and character of the area. 

Page  40



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

8. Prior to the commencement of the development, details of all external lighting 
affixed either to the lodges or within the site boundary shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall comprise a 
light spill plan to demonstrate that the local dark sky will not be compromised and 
once approved shall be adhered to for the duration of the development. 

 Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area. 

Prior to use and occupation 

9. Prior to the hereby approved development being brought into use The approved 
gas protection scheme within the remedial plan, shall be implemented and a 
verification report submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority, prior to the development (or relevant phase of development) being 
brought into use. 

 Reason: To ensure appropriate contaminated land contamination measures are 
implemented prior to occupation of the hereby approved lodges. 

On-going conditions 

10. The occupation of the lodge style caravans indicated on the Development Layout 
Plan, ref. H2-1900903-1, dated 10 June 2020 shall be for holiday purposes only. 
The site operator shall maintain an up-to-date register of names and addresses of 
the occupiers of the lodge style caravans, including those that are owner 
occupied, together with their dates of occupation, and shall make the register 
available to the local planning authority upon request. 

 Reason: The development is not a permanent residential accommodation site 
and in the interests of the amenity and character of the area. 

11. The hereby approved lodge style caravans located on site as indicated on the 
Development Layout Plan, ref. H2-1900903-1, dated 10 June 2020 shall be 
maintained to a good standard of repair to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority throughout their retention on site. 

 Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the area. 

12. There shall be no vehicular access or egress to and from the site other than via 
the existing approved access. 

 Reason: In the interests of road safety. 

13. Within 6 months of the development opening for business, the developer shall 
prepare and submit to the Local Planning Authority for their approval a Travel 
Plan which shall identify the measures that will be undertaken by the developer to 
encourage the achievement of a modal shift away from the use of private cars to 
visit the development to sustainable transport modes. The measures identified in 
the Travel Plan shall be implemented by the developer within 12 months of the 
development opening for business. 

 Reason: To aid in the delivery of sustainable transport objectives. 

14. An annual report reviewing the effectiveness of the Travel Plan and including any 
necessary amendments or measures shall be prepared by the developer/occupier 
and submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval, the Travel plan will 
then be monitored for a 5 year period. 

Page  41



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

 Reason: To aid in the delivery of sustainable transport objectives. 

15. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be 
present at the site then no further development shall be carried out until a 
remediation strategy detailing how this contamination will be dealt with has been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The 
remediation strategy shall then be implemented as approved. 

 Reason: To ensure that the development does not contribute to, and is not put at 
unacceptable risk from or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water 
pollution from previously unidentified contamination sources at the development 
site. 

16. Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems. 

 Reason: To secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and 
pollution. 

Note to developer: 

1. This decision notice grants planning permission only. It does not override any 
existing legal agreement, covenant or ownership arrangement. It is the applicant’s 
responsibility to ensure all necessary agreements are in place prior to the 
commencement of development. 

2. The applicant must apply for a licence prior to disturbing any protected species, 
specifically Great Crested Newts and should obtain such from Natural England 
prior to the commencement of any development. 

2. Proposal and Site Description 

2.1 Proposal 

2.1.1 This application is a full application for the change of use of existing agricultural land, 
for the siting of 73 lodge style caravans, landscaping and ancillary works. The site 
subject of this proposal is located adjacent (to the West) of the existing Ullswater 
Heights Holiday Homes and Lodge Park. The site is located at ‘Flusco’ and was 
previously utilised for mineral extraction, specifically limestone. Restoration works were 
undertaken on completion of the mineral workings. 

2.1.2 As has been confirmed, this scheme proposes 73 lodge style caravans and these 
would provide additional capacity beyond the existing 162 holiday units located upon 
site the wider site. Therefore, if approved, this application would result in 235 holiday 
lodges at the site. 

2.1.3 The ancillary works referred to would comprise the creation of internal roadways, 
additional parking, drainage and the formation of a new pond/wetland along with further 
landscaping proposals. 

2.1.4 Access would continue to utilise the existing access, already in place for the site as is. 
The applicant confirms that over the intended 3 year construction period, 5 jobs would 
be likely to be created for that phase. Whilst once operational, up to 10.95 FTE roles 
would be created and a further 18.29 jobs that would be supported indirectly by the 
development being approved and subsequently implemented. 

2.1.5 The landscaping proposed would extend to an area approximately 1.5 hectares in size 
and would comprise woodland a wildflower meadow the aforementioned pond and 
wetland. The existing hedgerow to the North would be strengthened, with further 

Page  42



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

planting and combined, the applicant contends that this allows the proposal to 
demonstrate enhanced biodiversity through the creation of these habitats. 

2.1.6 In total, the scheme would provide a further 1.5 hectares of new woodland, 1.5 
hectares of wildflower meadow, 70 ‘amenity’ trees, 1,100 metres of new hedgerow 
along with a new pond and wetland area. The pond would be 370 sq. metres in size. 

2.1.7 Drainage is intended to utilise surface water drainage to discharge directly to the 
existing ponds already established on site. This area would follow a similar approach 
and discharge to the proposed 370 sq. metre pond. 

2.2 Site Description 

2.2.1 The application site is an agricultural field of approximately 5.99 hectares in size. It is 
dominated by a topography that is rather flat and is bound by a mix of hedgerow and 
gorse. 

2.2.2 The site is bordered to the south by the B5320. The A66 is approximately 1.6 
kilometres away, also to the south. The nearest village, Newbiggin, is approximately 
460 metres from the application site, to the East. The existing site is located adjacent to 
the proposal site, to the East too. 

2.2.3 In the vicinity of the site is the Flusco Household Waste Recycling Centre (HWRC) (to 
the South). To the South-South-West, is the North Lakes Business Park. To the North, 
is open agricultural land, with sporadic agricultural type development. As well as 
Ullswater Heights, ‘Flusco Wood Caravan Park’ is located to the South-West, which is 
approximately, at the nearest points of each site boundary, 303 metres away. 

2.2.4 There are no immediately adjacent residential dwellings, with the nearest being within 
the settlement of Newbiggin, approximately 440 metres to the East. To the North, the 
nearest dwellings are ‘Station House’, approximately 420 metres from the proposal 
site, ‘Underwood’ is approximately 345 metres to the South-West and ‘Bank House’ is 
approximately 455 metres to the South-East. 

2.2.5 The site is not located in an area subject to any ‘special’ designation in terms of 
landscape or heritage zones and is noted to be located in designated Flood Zone 1. 
The site and surrounding area is known to be home to Great Crested Newts, a 
protected species. There are no other constraints considered relevant to the 
determination of this application. 

2.2.6 The application has been ‘screened’ as per the Town and Country Planning 
(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017. It is considered that whilst the 
development falls within the criteria of Schedule 2 Development (Tourism and Leisure), 
the application does not comprise development for which the planning application 
would need to be accompanied by an Environmental Statement. 

3. Consultees 

3.1 Consultees 

Consultee Response 

Cumbria County Council -
Local Highway Authority 

Responded initially on the 4 August 2020 and 
confirmed that the Local Highway Authority would 
have no objection to the proposed development. It 
was considered that improving pedestrian connectivity 
would be something that at that point, should be 

Page  43



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

provided. 

Following this response, further discussions between 
the applicant and Local Highway Authority took place. 

On the 11 November 2020 an updated response was 
submitted (this was re-submitted on the 15 July 2021). 
It confirmed that, ‘Cumbria County Council as 
Highways Authority has re-evaluated the application 
and the supporting Travel plan and Transport 
Statements provided in conjunction with the request 
for a footway link the site with the Village of 
Newbiggin, and given that there are limited benefits 
and attractors such as a bus service with in the 
village. It is therefore agreed that the provision of the 
previously mentioned footway would not be a viable 
request and due to land availability would be difficult 
to implement. 

The evidence which has been provided within the 
Travel Plan indicate that opportunities for more 
sustainable means of transport for visitors and 
employees are limited and as such it is highly likely 
that the preferred options would be to access the site 
by Car, this has also been represented and 
considered within the Transport Statement provided. 

As such CCC would request a Section 106 developer 
contribution of £6,600.00 towards Travel Plan 
monitoring over a period of 5 years. The monitoring 
will be undertaken and seek to assess the 
effectiveness of the Travel Plans aims and the 
delivery of the objectives specified by the applicant’s 
consultants. 

It is also noted in recent communications that the 
applicant would be looking to improve the Public 
Rights of Way links in the area and the connectivity 
with the proposed Holiday Park, the proposal was not 
initially what CCC had been requesting however the 
plans and aims are well received and would be of a 
benefit to health and well being along with providing 
amenity value to the visitors of the Holiday Park. 

The applicant should be aware that there is a Weight 
limit restriction on the public highway network in this 
area, the weight limit is to prevent HGVs gaining 
accessing to the A66 through the village of 
Newbiggin, and as such this should be considered 
and communicated with any contractors throughout 
construction and on completion. 

As such Cumbria County Council as Local Highway 
Authority would request the inclusion of the following 
conditions in any permission the Local Planning 
Authority may consider granting’. 

Page  44



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

These conditions relate to access, travel plan and a 
travel plan report. 

The response concluded that ‘Cumbria County 
Council as both Local Highway Authority and Lead 
Local Flood Authority would have no objection to the 
proposed development, however we would request 
the inclusion of the mentioned conditions and a Travel 
Plan monitoring Fee of £6,600.00’. 

Cumbria County Council – 
Lead Local Flood Authority 

Responded initially on the 4 August 2020 and 
confirmed that ‘It should be noted that the application 
provides no details to demonstrate how the 
development site will be drained. The application site 
as indicated on the application form has been 
calculated as covering 5.99 hectares in size and as 
such CCC as LLFA would need to see the inclusion of 
a Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy to 
support the planning application of this size. As such, 
whilst the LLFA had no objection in principle to the 
scheme proposed, it considered that inadequate 
information in relation to surface water drainage had 
been provided at this stage. 

A further response, on the 15 July 2021 was provided. 
This stated that ‘Cumbria County Council as Lead 
Local Flood Authority has reviewed the Flood Risk 
Assessment (FRA) undertaken by JBA consulting and 
Dated June 2020 along with the drainage plans 
submitted by Northpoint Consulting drawing No N50 
Rev:1 and would have no objection to the proposed 
development. 

The FRA provided indicates the flood risk to the 
development however it does not show the flood risk 
associated with the discharge of Foul drainage, 
Cumbria County Council and United Utilities have 
been working in partnership to resolve flooding issues 
down stream of the development. The main concern 
for both parties is the use of hot tubs on the holiday 
park and what impact the discharge and cleaning 
associated with the hot tubs would have on the 
receiving foul drainage network which is managed by 
United Utilities, as such CCC would request that the 
applicant continues to work with UU in dealing with 
the discharge. 

In terms of surface water flood risk the FRA covers 
the risk associated with the development and as such 
CCC would have no objection to the proposed surface 
water drainage proposal indicated on drawing No N50 
Rev:1, however we would request the inclusion of the 
following condition in understanding the Surface 
Water Management Plan which would indicated how 

Page  45



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

the surface water will be managed throughout 
construction and on completion with an indication as 
to who will be responsible for the management and 
maintenance of the surface water system’. 

This condition relates to a surface water construction 
management plan. 

The response concluded that ‘Cumbria County 
Council as both Local Highway Authority and Lead 
Local Flood Authority would have no objection to the 
proposed development, however we would request 
the inclusion of the mentioned conditions and a Travel 
Plan monitoring Fee of £6,600.00’. 

Cumbria County Council – 
Minerals Planning Authority 

Responded on the 29 July 2021 and confirmed as 
follows ‘Thankyou for consulting us on the above 
application which falls within a Minerals Safeguarding 
Area for Limestone. 

The proposal is to extend an existing holiday lodge 
park in this location, also within the safeguarding 
area. As the safeguarding area extends across a 
significant area of surrounding open land I consider 
this proposal will not prevent access to the mineral 
resource in this locality for extraction in the future. 

I therefore consider that criterion 4 of Policy DC15 
(Minerals Safeguarding) in the adopted Cumbria 
Minerals and Waste Local Plan is satisfied. 

Cumbria County Council as minerals planning 
authority therefore does not object to this application. 

As an officer observation, I also note that the Flusco 
HWRC site and Flusco Quarry are located to the 
south of the application site, on the opposite side of 
the highway. As the proposed new development will 
be set further back from these facilities than the 
closest part of the existing holiday park, it is my view 
that there will not be any issue in terms of potential 
disturbance that would prejudice any future operations 
at those facilities’. 

Environment Agency Were consulted on the 11 February 2020 and 11 May 
2021. A response was received on the 13 May 2021.It 
stated that ‘We have reviewed the following reports 
submitted with this application: 

Phase One Planning Desktop Preliminary 
Environmental Risk Assessment issued for Ullswater 
Heights Holiday Home and Lodge Park, Flusco, 
Penrith, CA11 0JB produced by Argyll Environmental 
Limited (ref. AEL-4491-PP1-1011468, dated 19 
October 2020; Phase 2 Land Quality Assessment; 
Ullswater Heights Holiday Homes and Lodge Park, 

Flusco, Penrith, CA11 0JB prepared for Argyll 

Page  46



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

Environmental Limited by Ground First Limited (ref. 
4179R1, dated 6 May 2021). 

In review of the above reports, it should be noted that 
although the drilling technique limited the depth of 
borehole investigation and retrieval of groundwater 
samples, supplementary leaching analysis was 
undertaken to support the risk assessment. 

Elevated ammonia levels are a cause for concern for 
groundwater quality, but the source is more likely than 
not to be of agricultural origin as opposed to infill 
material. 

The ground investigation and risk assessment confirm 
the made ground to comprise naturally occurring 
spoil. The low levels of contaminants in soils do not 
pose a high level of risk to surface water and/or 
groundwater. 

Therefore we have no objections to the development 
providing the following condition is applied’. 

This condition related to during development, should 
contamination, not previously identified to cease 
works until an appropriate assessment and 
remediation strategy is agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority. 

Natural England Responded on the 21 July 2020 and confirmed ‘Due 
to the high population of great crested newts on site 
the standing advice needs to be applied and the 
applicant will need to apply for a European Protected 
Species Licence as outlined in the submitted Ecology 
Report’. 

Lake District National Park Responded on the 14 September 2020 and confirmed 
‘No comments’ upon the proposal. 

Arboriculturalist Responded on the 14 July 2020 and confirmed ‘The 
LVIA supporting the proposal concludes that the 
scheme could be assimilated into the existing 
landscape with no significant residual landscape and 
visual effects and provides recommendations at 
section 8 to ensure this is achieved. It also includes a 
site layout plan on page 29 with indicative 
landscaping proposals. The recommendations and 
outline landscaping appear to me to be suitable 
measures, however, I could not see a fully detailed 
landscaping layout or landscape management plan 
that incorporate these details. I also noted that the 
existing ash tree on the northern boundary is to be 
retained but there are no details of how this tree will 
be protected during the construction phase. Should 
the scheme be considered for approval then this 
information would be essential, either as approved 

Page  47



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

documents and plans prior to determination or 
required by conditions attached to any forthcoming 
decision notice’. 

United Utilities Responded on the 30 July 2020 and confirmed that 
were the application to be approved, they would wish 
to see conditions related to Surface and Foul water be 
attached to any subsequent decision notice. 

Environmental Health Officer 
(EHO) 

Responded initially on the 3 July 2020 and requested 
a Phase 1 Contaminated Land Assessment to be 
completed for the site. This work was carried out by 
the applicant and a subsequent response on the 30 
October 2020 was submitted by the Environmental 
Health Officer (EHO). This requested a further, Phase 
II site investigation to be carried out. 

The applicant therefore provided this information but 
further details were sought. 

This was also provided. The EHO assessed this 
further information and confirmed on the 29 June 
2021 the following ‘Environmental Protection have 
reviewed submitted reports Phase One (undertaken 
by Argyll Environmental) and the final draft Phase 2 
Land Quality Assessment (undertaken by Groundfirst) 
inclusive of further gas monitoring. Significantly 
elevated concentration reading for CH4 and CO2 
where noted at BH05. 

On discussion with the consultant and applicant it was 
agreed gas control measures will be included within 
all caravan base structures within the eastern part of 
the site (made ground). A construction and verification 
standard was put forward by the consultant and is 
deemed acceptable’. 

The EHO requested conditions in relation to a gas 
protection scheme and the reporting of any 
unexpected contamination to be included in any 
subsequent approval of the scheme. 

Economic Development Responded on the 2 August 2021 and confirmed that 
whilst the Economic Benefit Appraisal referred 
generally to National research with minimal reference 
to North-West and nothing specific to Cumbria – 
however, the final comments confirmed, ‘The 
document clearly demonstrates the value and volume 
of holiday parks and camping sites and the resulting 
economic benefit to the local area. The demand for 
high quality self-catering accommodation in Cumbria 
has increased over the last five years and particularly 
since the Covid pandemic’. 

Page  48



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

4. Parish Council/Meeting Response 

Parish 
Council/Meeting 

Object Support No Response Comments 

Dacre     

4.1 The Parish Council responded on the 31 July 2020 and confirmed: 

‘Dacre PC wish to object in the strongest possible terms to this development. 

Objective 10 of the Eden Local Plan 2014 - 2032 indicates that sustainable tourism 
should “maximise social and economic benefits in a manner which is acceptable to the 
local community and does not reduce environmental quality.” The applicant has made 
no attempt to engage with either the local community or the parish council. This 
attitude is in distinct contrast to previous large-scale developments in the parish. For 
example, the applicants for Raven Crag (08/0731), Flusco HWRC (3/05/9003, and 
Blencowe Business Park (11/0001) have met with the local community and the parish 
council to identify the mutual benefits a development might bring, and worked together 
to address potential local issues. Unfortunately the applicant has not felt it appropriate 
to communicate with either the Parish Council or the local community at any stage. 

The proposed seventy-three new sites together with the existing 130 premises at 
Ullswater Heights will dwarf the local Newbiggin community of only 90 households. The 
development is proposed in open countryside on agricultural land, as the applicants 
have amply demonstrated in their viewpoint photographs. The scale and ambition is 
such that the development has, or will have, the potential to impact the wider Eden 
area on a similar scale to the Centre Parks complex. 

The parish council considers that some parts of the supporting documentation 
commissioned by the applicant in support of the application are superficial and naive. 
For example; 

local roads are given invented names (Newbiggin Road) instead of the County Council 
designations (C3019); 

the distance from the development to the Clickham Inn is given as a crow-fly 
measurement (700m) instead of its real-life distance on public routes (2000m); 

bus routes 132 and X9 offer such a limited service (one day a week or less) that they 
cannot be seriously be regarded as a travel option; 

the local accident data referenced does not identify that accidents at the A66 / C3019 
junction are more likely to involve visitors to the area; 

no reference is made to the unavoidable steep ascent to the site for visitors arriving on 
cycle or foot via the only access road, the U3148. 

Given the superficiality of the material presented and the failure to engage with the 
local community the planning committee may wish to consider the integrity of this 
application. 

The parish council also has particular concerns over the impact of a development of 
this size on the local infrastructure. 

Transport 

On the C3019 through Newbiggin village there are four farms. Stock movements and 
equine activities are very frequent. EDC designates the road as a cycle route to 

Page  49



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

Keswick. The length to Stainton is narrow and has no footway. A CCC Highways traffic 
monitor in 2015 showed more than 150 vehicles/hr used the road, 50% of which were 
exceeding the statutory speed limit, and 13% of which were HGVs. 

In the past, vehicular traffic through Newbiggin has been considered to have such a 
significant impact on the community that planning conditions or statutory measures 
were imposed; 

1994 – County Council agree that contractor’s traffic to the Flusco landfill site will not 
traverse Newbiggin; 

2005 (3/05/9003) – County Council impose planning conditions to require appropriate 
signage at the site and on the A66 directing traffic to and from the Flusco HWRC to 
avoid Newbiggin; 

2011 (11/0001) EDC impose conditions on a site at Blencowe Business Park to require 
that traffic should avoid a traverse of Newbiggin; 

2013 – 2016 speed limits are reduced, newly imposed or extended in Newbiggin; 

2015 – County Council propose a weight limit in Newbiggin; 

2018 – Police work with the local community to implement Speedwatch in Newbiggin. 

Sadly the applicants either have not investigated or choose to ignore these efforts by 
local authorities to minimise vehicle impact on the local community of Newbiggin. 
Instead they choose to present, without explanation, ‘anticipated trip generation in an 
(undefined) hourly “peak period”. 

Further, the applicants concede in the final paragraphs of their transport assessment 
(3.10) and their travel plan (surprisingly also 3.10) that it is difficult to envisage visitors 
and staff accessing the site other than by car. Even with the applicants’ efforts at an 
fanciful ‘travel plan marketing and information’ strategy, it is difficult to see in the real 
world how this can be squared with EDC policy EC4, “arrangements have been made 
to provide access by means other than the private car”. As a result, the parish council 
is concerned that overall this proposal will have a negative effect on the EDC net zero 
carbon plan, and on the village of Newbiggin. 

Foul water 

Foul water from the applicant’s site drains via a 6-inch main under Howgate, 
Newbiggin. For many years in heavy rainfall this sewer has overflowed into the public 
highway and has backed-up to issue into local properties. At the request of the parish 
council United Utilities investigated the sewer and found that the overflow was related 
to inappropriate connections of surface water drainage to the foul water system. 
Although some of these have been disconnected United Utilities have expressed 
concern that the land overlying the sewer continues to host illegal connections which 
may influence its performance. Accordingly the parish council are concerned that an 
additional load on an already overstretched system will result in overflows occurring 
even during everyday rainfall conditions, impacting on the property and environment of 
Newbiggin residents’. 

Page  50



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

5. Representations 

5.1 A press notice was published in the Herald on the 11 July 2020. 

No of Neighbours Consulted 0 No of letters of support 0 

No of Representations Received 2 No of neutral representations 0 

No of objection letters 2   

5.2 It is not possible to convey, ‘word for word’ each of the objectors’ comments, but the 
following confirms the basis of the objections received; 

 Noise levels will be increased from site; 

 The scale of the development and site as a whole will be too large; 

 The scheme would result in significant additional traffic movements; 

 The proposal would have an unacceptable landscape impact; 

 The sewer system is at capacity. 

6. Relevant Planning History 

 On land adjacent to the application site: 

Application No Description Outcome 

19/0539 Discharge of conditions 15 (Aerial image 
of site showing proposed location of bird 
and bat boxes) and condition 18 (travel 
plan) attached to planning permission ref: 
09/0190. 

Approved 

19/0428 Retrospective change of use of 
agricultural land to petting zoo and siting 
of stables/field shelters. 

Granted 

19/0392 Variation of condition 2 (plans 
compliance) To include layout and 
design, and discharge of condition 10 
(materials and colour of 
caravans/lodges), 16 (hard and Soft 
landscaping works) and 17, (external 
lighting) attached to approval 09/0190. 

Granted 

17/0205 Certificate of lawfulness for confirmation 
that work can continue on the 
development of the holiday park as it was 
lawfully commencing in accordance with 
planning permission 09/0190. 

Granted 

09/0190 Change of use to holiday park comprising 
172 caravans/lodges with ancillary 
buildings and landscaping works. 

Granted 

Page  51



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

7. Policy Context 

7.1 Development Plan 

Eden Local Plan 2014-2032: 

The specific policies considered relevant in the determination of this particular 
application are as follows; 

 LS1 - Locational Strategy 

 DEV1 General Approach to New Development; 

 DEV2: Water Management and Flood Risk; 

 DEV3 - Transport, Accessibility and Rights of Way; 

 DEV5 - Design of New Development; 

 ENV1 - Protection and Enhancement of the Natural Environment, Biodiversity and 

Geodiversity; 

 ENV2 - Protection and Enhancements of Landscapes and Trees; 

 ENV5 – Environmentally Sustainable Design; 

 EC4 - Tourism Accommodation and Facilities; 

 ENV8 – Land Contamination; 

 ENV10 – The Historic Environment. 

7.2 Other Material Considerations 

National Planning Policy Framework July 2021: 

 Achieving sustainable development; 

 Decision-making; 

 Making effective use of land; 

 Achieving well designed places; 

 Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change; 

 Conserving and enhancing the natural environment; 

 Building a strong, competitive economy; 

 Supporting a prosperous rural economy. 

The policies detailed above are considered the most relevant policies relating to this 
application. 

8. Planning Assessment 

8.1 Key/Main Planning Issues 

 Principal of development 

 Design 

 Landscape and Visual Impacts 

 Drainage 

 Natural Environment 

 Amenity 

 Highway Safety 

 Contaminated Land 

 Historic Environment 

 Other Matters 

Page  52



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

8.2 Principle 

8.2.1 In terms of the principle of any development, consideration is given to the Development 
Plan. This consists of the adopted Eden Local Plan (2014-2032) and the policies which 
it contains. 

8.2.2 Policy LS1 of the Eden Local Plan, entitled ‘Locational Strategy’ sets out the hierarchy 
of settlements where development should be focused in the most sustainable locations, 
the most sustainable being Penrith, the Market Towns and Key Hubs. 

8.2.3 The Local Plan document confirms that that in relation to Policy LS1 ‘the following 
policy sets out our settlement hierarchy and shows which areas we expected to be the 
focus for residential, employment and commercial provision’. 

8.2.4 Policy DEV1 entitled ‘General Approach to New Development’ states that ‘‘Planning 
applications that accord with policies in this Local Plan (and, where relevant, with 
policies in neighbourhood plans) will be approved without delay, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. Where there are no policies relevant to the 
application or relevant policies are out of date at the time of making the decision then 
the Council will grant permissions unless material considerations indicated otherwise – 
taking into account whether: 

 Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the National Planning 
Policy Framework taken as a whole; or 

 Specific policies in that Framework indicate that development should restricted’. 

8.2.5 Policy EC4, entitled ‘Tourism Accommodation and Facilities’ states that large scale 
tourism development that ‘would result in a substantial increase in visitor numbers will 
only be permitted if the following criteria are met: 

 The development proposed improves the range or quality of tourism and facilities in 
the area; 

 The site is close to the strategic road network; 

 They offer substantial economic benefits to the district; 

 The development offers the highest possible standards of siting, design and 
landscaping; 

 The traffic generated by the proposal will not have an unacceptable impact on 
nearby settlements or the local network; 

 Arrangements have been made to provide access by means other than the private 
car; 

 The tranquillity and dark skies associated with the open countryside are not 
compromised’. 

8.2.6 Chapter 6 entitled ‘Building a strong, competitive economy’ of the National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF) states that “Planning policies and decisions should help 
create the conditions in which businesses can invest, expand and adapt. Significant 
weight should be placed on the need to support economic growth and productivity, 
taking into account both local business needs and wider opportunities for development. 
The approach taken should allow each area to build on its strengths, counter any 
weaknesses and address the challenges of the future”. When specifically referring to 
the rural economy, it also states that planning decisions should enable “the sustainable 
growth and expansion of all types of business in rural areas”, “the development and 

Page  53



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

diversification of agricultural and other land-based rural businesses” and “sustainable 
rural tourism and leisure developments which respect the character of the countryside”. 

8.2.7 In terms of Policy EC4, the extant permission essentially confirms that the site is 
already considered acceptable but in relation to the criterion of Policy EC4 the following 
consideration has been given to the scheme: 

8.2.8 The development proposed improves the range or quality of tourism and facilities in the 
area – It is considered that the development would contribute to the tourism facilities in 
the area and that the existing facilities, which are of a high standard, would be 
replicated in this scheme. Accordingly, it is considered that the application would 
comply with this particular criterion of Policy EC4. 

8.2.9 The site is close to the strategic road network – The application site would utilise an 
already well established highway access point which does not involve a lengthy access 
drive. It is therefore considered to be very close to the existing strategic road network 
and therefore complies with this criterion of Policy EC4. 

8.2.10 They offer substantial economic benefits to the district – The application has been 
supported by quite significant amounts of information which suggests that there are 
economic benefits. This is included in an ‘Economic Benefit Final report’. The applicant 
also advises that the development would involve the creation of 10.95 FTE roles would 
be created and a further 18.29 jobs that would be supported indirectly. The roles 
referred to as ‘indirect jobs’ are related to construction via suppliers of materials, 
equipment and service industries (bars, restaurants etc.) where guests would utilise 
local pubs, restaurants, cafes and the like. The Economic Development team have 
confirmed that ‘The document clearly demonstrates the value and volume of holiday 
parks and camping sites and the resulting economic benefit to the local area. The 
demand for high quality self-catering accommodation in Cumbria has increased over 
the last five years and particularly since the Covid pandemic’. It is considered that there 
is both a demand for this type of development and that there would be an economic 
benefit to the district were such a scheme approved and subsequently implemented. 

8.2.11 The development offers the highest possible standards of siting, design and 
landscaping – It is recognised that the site is rather open, with long distance views to 
the West. To the East is the existing caravan site whilst the area to the South is bound 
by the public highway (to which the site has access and egress). To the North is open 
agricultural land. The scale of development is significant so there would be some 
landscape harm in that it would be some potential long ranging views of the 
development, although this would be softened over time by the potential for landscape 
planting and even so, being visible does not in itself constitute ‘harm’. 

8.2.12 The site in this case is previously developed having been utilised in mineral extraction. 
The applicant proposes a good landscaping scheme which would augment existing 
planting and improve its overall quality, likely to enhance the biodiversity of the area. In 
consideration then of the criterion of the policy, it is considered that the scheme would 
deliver a good standard of landscaping and would be located on previously developed 
land. 

8.2.13 The design of the units is noted to intend to replicate those already in use on the wider 
site. These are good quality lodges and it was also noted that the site was very well 
maintained. Given the previously developed nature of the site it is recognised that the 
viable future uses of this land could be somewhat limited and in some respects it 
makes sense to consider the extension of the existing holiday site. Given that there is 

Page  54



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

an existing site adjacent, we can therefore assess the type and intended design of 
units utilised their rather than rely solely on the interpretation of plans. In respect of 
this, we can see that the units are well maintained and are of a good quality. 

8.2.14 The applicant’s proposals would therefore involve ‘more of the same’ but with further 
landscape planting to augment that already exists on site boundaries and within the 
proposed site itself. In that respect, the location of the proposed application, with these 
aspects of proposed landscaping too, is considered acceptable in principle. As is the 
design of the proposed units, given they are similar to those already located upon site, 
it would be difficult to rationally explain why such design approaches was unacceptable 
now given the backdrop of the existing site. 

8.2.15 The traffic generated by the proposal will not have an unacceptable impact on nearby 
settlements or the local network – this aspect of the scheme has been considered by 
both the Local Highway Authority and Highways England and is discussed later in this 
report. However, given the comments received, it is considered that the development 
would not result in an unacceptable impact on the local highway network. Accordingly, 
the scheme is considered to comply with this criterion of Policy EC4. 

8.2.16 Arrangements have been made to provide access by means other than the private car 
– In relation to this the applicant has confirmed their intention to provide a minibus to 
transport customers a pick up and drop off ‘shuttle’ service. The service would drop off 
customers in Penrith, Pooley Bridge, Glenridding and Keswick and return them back to 
the site toward the end of the day. This is considered to be a very positive element of 
the proposal and is well supported by officers. As such, this aspect of the application is 
considered to accord with the criterion of Policy EC4. 

8.2.17 The tranquillity and dark skies associated with the open countryside are not 
compromised – It is noted that the existing development has not had any significantly 
detrimental impacts upon the tranquillity and dark skies of the area and it is not 
considered likely that this proposal would increase such impact. On site visit, the site 
has appeared most tranquil to the case officer and whilst there would be a bigger 
number of guests potentially on the wider site were this application approved, the area 
of the site these guests would be located over would increase to accommodate them. 
There is no significant lighting proposed other than the pedestrian down lighting 
already used on site. This is very low level lighting and would not be considered to 
have any impact upon the night sky. As such, the scheme is considered to comply with 
the criterion of Policy EC4. In any event, a condition is recommended to be attached to 
any subsequent approval of this scheme, requiring details of the external lighting to be 
fitted on site to be approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to any works 
commencing. 

8.2.18 Accordingly then, the principle of the development is considered acceptable and 
accords with the requirements of Policy EC4. Furthermore, the scheme is considered 
to comply with the NPPF which confirms that sustainable rural tourism and leisure 
developments, which respect the character of the countryside should be supported. 

8.3 Design 

8.3.1 Policy DEV5 states development which “shows a clear understanding  of the form and 
character of the district’s built and natural environment, complementing and enhancing 
the existing area and reflecting the streetscene through use of appropriate scale, 
mass, form, design and materials” could be supported. 

Page  55



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

8.3.2 If further states ‘New development will be required to demonstrate that it meets each of     
the following criteria: 

 Shows a clear understanding of the form and character of the district’s built and 
natural environment, complementing and enhancing the existing area. 

 Protects and where possible enhances the district’s distinctive rural landscape, 
natural environment and biodiversity. 

 Reflects the existing street scene through use of appropriate scale, mass, form, 
layout, high quality architectural design and use of materials. 

 Optimises the potential use of the site and avoids overlooking. 

 Protects the amenity of the existing residents and business occupiers and provides 
an acceptable amenity for future occupiers. 

 Use quality materials which complement or enhance local surroundings. 

 Protects features and characteristics of local importance. 

 Provides adequate space for the storage, collection and recycling of waste. 

 Can be easily accessed and used by all, regardless of age and disability’. 

8.3.3 Chapter 12 of the NPPF, entitled ‘Achieving well-designed places’ states at Paragraph 
126 that, ‘good design is a key aspect of sustainable development’. 

8.3.4 Paragraph 130 advises that ‘Planning Policies and decisions should ensure that 
developments: 

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short 
term but over the lifetime of the development; 

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and 
effective landscaping; 

c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built 
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging 
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities); 

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, 
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive 
places to live, work and visit; 

e) optimise the potential site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount and 
mix of development (including green and other public space) and support local 
facilities and transport networks; and 

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and 
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users and where 
crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or 
community cohesion and resilience’. 

8.3.5 Paragraph 134 says that ‘Development that is not well designed should be refused, 
especially where it fails to reflect local design policies and government guidance on 
design, taking into account any local design guidance and supplementary planning 
documents such as design guides and codes. Conversely, significant weight should be 
given to: 

Page  56



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

a) development which reflects local design policies and government guidance on 
design, taking into account any local design guidance and supplementary planning 
documents such as design guides and codes; and/or 

b) outstanding or innovative designs which promote high levels of sustainability, or 
help raise the standard of design more generally in an area, so long as they fit in 
with the overall form and layout of their surroundings. 

8.3.6 Policy ENV5 entitled ‘Environmentally Sustainable Design’ states that ‘proposals for 
commercial development and for major residential development, defined in Appendix 2, 
should demonstrate, where it is practical for them to do so, that they have considered 
each of the following criteria: 

 Maximising daylight and passive solar gain through the orientation of buildings. 

 Integrating sustainable urban drainage systems. 

 Designing and positioning buildings to minimise wind funnelling, frost pockets and 
uncomfortable microclimates. 

 Integrating renewable energy technology into the scheme, and in schemes 
comprising over 50 dwellings or on sites over 1.5 hectares, exploring the scope for 
direct heating. 

 Minimising construction waste, through for example designing out waste during the 
design stage, selecting sustainable and efficient building materials and reusing 
materials where possible. 

 Providing well-designed and visually unobtrusive outdoor waste storage areas to 
promote cycling. 

 Promoting sustainable transport modes, through for example careful layout and 
road design to ensure it is conducive to walking and cycling and prioritises the 
pedestrian and cyclist over the car’. 

8.3.7 Paragraph 154 of the NPPF states that ‘New development should be planned for in 
ways that: 

a) avoid increased vulnerability to the range of impacts arising from climate change. 
When new development is brought forward in areas which are vulnerable, care 
should be taken to ensure that risks can be managed through suitable adaptation 
measures, including through the planning of green infrastructure; and 

b) can help to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, such as through its location, 
orientation and design. Any local requirements for the sustainability of buildings 
should reflect the Government’s policy for national technical standards’. 

8.3.8 The scheme would, as has been established the siting of 73 caravans which have a 
‘lodge’ style and these would replicate the ones in use on site. This type of design for 
these caravans has already been considered acceptable on the existing/adjacent site, 
and as such, it is considered difficult to now consider such an approach completely 
unacceptable in this locality. Nevertheless, an assessment of the proposed lodges, 
specifically related to this application must be made. 

8.3.9 In that respect, the type of application is noted to be for ‘lodge’ style caravans and as 
such, the visual appearance of them will obviously reflect this. The materials proposed 
are again, intended to replicate those already in use on the operational existing site. 
Whilst it is equally noted that the applicant has not entirely confirmed the exact 

Page  57



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

specification, their intentions are to replicate what is already available on the existing, 
operational site and would be subject to further approval through the imposition of 
appropriate planning conditions. 

8.3.10 To that end, the assessment is based upon the generic acceptability of such units, 
notwithstanding the precise design and materials to be utilised is not precisely 
confirmed. 

8.3.11 It is therefore considered that whilst the intentions of the applicant to replicate those 
lodges already located on the adjacent site, this decision, if it were to approve the 
lodges, includes a condition requiring the submission of final design and materials to be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for written approval prior to the 
commencement of any works on site. 

8.3.12 Accordingly, such a condition is attached to the suite of draft conditions contained 
within this report and it is recommended such is imposed were this application 
approved by this committee. 

8.3.13 The applicant has, however confirmed, that maximising daylight and passive solar gain 
will be achieved by the proposed layout of the lodges and the scheme proposes 
sustainable urban drainage systems (SuDS). Whilst all units will be manufactured to 
BS3632 standards. 

8.3.14 In addition to these environmentally sustainable design approaches, the applicant runs 
a shuttle service for customers to explore the locality and in addition already has some 
electric charge points at the existing site. Further charging points and a ‘district’ heating 
scheme for the existing and proposed site are also being considered by the applicant – 
although these intentions are well supported by officers, they can be afforded no weight 
in the planning balance as they are not formally proposed as part of this scheme. 

8.3.15 Internal footpaths are intended to link both sites together to allow holidaymakers the 
ability to walk around the wider site and the applicant’s intentions to provide new 
hedgerow, enhancement to existing hedgerow, a wetland area, new meadows and 
further woodland planting would offer biodiversity gains and improve the overall value 
of the site. These are considered benefits of the scheme as proposed and are afforded 
weight in favour of the scheme, in the planning balance. 

8.3.16 It is considered that the scheme as proposed would result in a development similar in 
outward visual appearance to that already located on adjacent land and run by the 
applicant. Whilst the final details are noted to yet be decided, the imposition of a 
condition requiring this formal detail to be provided prior to the commencement of any 
approved scheme. 

8.3.17 It will then be for the applicant to detail appropriate design and materials at that stage. 
The applicant’s intentions to replicate the existing lodges is considered acceptable in 
principle. It is recognised that this site would be augmented by further landscaping 
which in this case, is considered to be an appropriate method to limit any potential 
landscape harm. Even so, the landscape harm the scheme would have is considered 
minimal in any event. 

8.3.18 The applicant’s environmentally sustainable approach is also considered acceptable. 
They have confirmed that the layout takes account of solar gain, will utilise lodges 
constructed to minimum British standards and already run a shuttle service to offer 
guests a more sustainable form of transport to sight-see in the locality, should they 
wish to utilise it. Furthermore, the wider site would still benefit from existing electric 

Page  58



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

vehicle charging points. Should demand increase, the applicant would consider the 
installation of more. 

8.3.19 Overall then, the principle of the intentions of the applicant to replicate the type of lodge 
they already utilise on their existing business here, is considered acceptable. The 
specific details though, would be required to be submitted prior to the commencement 
of any permission given by this committee. 

8.3.20 Accordingly, the development is considered to accord with Policy DEV5, ENV5, the 
NPPF and in respect of these aspects of the scheme, recommended for approval. 

8.4 Landscape and Visual Impacts 

8.4.1 A consideration in relation to this application is the Landscape and Visual Impact of the 
proposal. 

8.4.2 Policy DEV5 also seeks to ensure that development protects and where possible 
enhances the rural landscape. One of its several criterion states that development 
should ensure that it ‘Protects and where possible enhances the district’s distinctive 
rural landscape, natural environment and biodiversity’. 

8.4.3 Policy ENV2 entitled ‘Protection and Enhancements of Landscapes and Trees’ 
confirms that ‘new development will only be permitted where it conserves and 
enhances distinctive elements of landscape character and function’. It also confirms 
that as per criterion 5, the ‘tranquillity of the open countryside’ should be taken account 
of by any proposals submitted by an applicant. 

8.4.4 In assessing the visual impact of the proposal, consideration should be given to 
Paragraph 130 of the NPPF which confirms that ‘Planning Policies and decisions 
should ensure that developments: 

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short 
term but over the lifetime of the development; 

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and 
effective landscaping; 

c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built 
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging 
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities); 

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, 
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive 
places to live, work and visit; 

e) optimise the potential site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount and 
mix of development (including green and other public space) and support local 
facilities and transport networks; and 

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and 
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users and where 
crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or 
community cohesion and resilience’. 

8.4.5 The applicants have produced a comprehensive Landscape and Visual Impact 
Assessment (LVIA) which details what they consider to be the impacts of the 
development upon the local and wider landscape, along with what mitigation, if any 
could be offered to limit any potential impact. 

Page  59



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

8.4.6 This reaffirms that as part of the scheme, if approved, it would involve the planting of 
approximately 1.5 hectares of woodland, 1.5 hectares of wildflower meadow and a 
pond/wetland area with 70 amenity trees. Existing hedgerow will also be enhanced 
along the northern boundary of the site. The assessment considers that there would be 
no significant landscape or visual effects were this scheme approved and subsequently 
implemented. This is considered to represent both appropriate landscape and 
biodiversity mitigation for the development of the site. 

8.4.7 Any site, that is currently undeveloped would change in visual appearance were it then 
developed. But it is also important to note that this site has had former land uses 
(mineral extraction) and as such, whilst in its current restored appearance, it is 
acknowledged that the site and indeed the surrounding area, have been subject to 
intensive operations and activities. In this regard, the appearance of the land cannot be 
considered to be previously undeveloped as it has been extensively altered by the 
historic mineral extraction use of the site and it is recognised now to be ‘man made’ 
due to the restoration that has been undertaken there. 

8.4.8 Indeed, the lodges to the East-North-East of the application site are located upon the 
former quarry too. Nevertheless, it is recognised that the scheme would change the 
outward visual appearance of this particular site, although not to a significantly harmful 
extent. The proposed plan in this instance would be to combine significant landscaping, 
forming bands of trees, to essentially separate the ‘bands’ of lodges as proposed. 

8.4.9 Any landscaping proposed, were it to ‘screen’ development that was considered 
unacceptable, would not, in its own right, be appropriate. However, in this instance, the 
use of the land, to extend and expand an existing business, is considered an 
appropriate, in principle land-use given this land in particular is a restored mineral 
extraction site. 

8.4.10 Without landscaping, the scheme would be seen against the backdrop of the existing 
lodges. This would not be preferable and the landscape mitigation not only softens 
these wider landscape impacts, but also, notably, provides an ecological and 
biodiversity gain. It would turn, existing rye grassland into a far more diverse 
landscape, which is considered most beneficial. 

8.4.11 It is noted that one objector considers any landscaping to take time to fully become 
established. This is acknowledged. But in its own right, this is not considered a reason 
to refuse the scheme as a whole. The landscaping would provide a beneficial adjunct 
to the scheme as proposed and is considered appropriate in this instance. 

8.4.12 It is also acknowledged that the development would have a cumulative impact in terms 
of landscape impact. But the landscaping proposals for this particular development are 
such that over time, whilst it would remain part of the wider site, would provide a 
distinct internal boundary between it and the other lodges. In that respect, it would be 
seen as a complete, independent site, with all the lodges not being visible from one 
single view. As such, the cumulative impact in terms of Landscape is not considered to 
be significantly harmful, or to such an extent that warrants the refusal of this 
application. 

8.4.13 Possible impacts upon the UNESCO Lake District National Park have also been 
considered. Whilst long range views of distant fells can be observed from the site, it is 
not considered that there would be any significant, demonstrable impacts upon the 
National Park. Simply being able to observe the fells, or being able to observe a 

Page  60



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

particular object in the landscape from say, the aforementioned fells, would not 
necessarily equate to ‘harm’. 

8.4.14 In order to assist in the assessment of the potential impact that the development could 
have upon the designated Lake District National Park, Officers have consulted the 
National Park Authority. They duly considered the plans and have offered no 
comments upon the application. 

8.4.15 Paragraph 176 of the NPPF confirms that, ‘Great weight should be given to conserving 
and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in National Parks, the Broads and Areas 
of Outstanding Natural Beauty, which have the highest status of protection in relation to 
these issues’. 

8.4.16 The site is clearly not located within the National Park but there is potential for certain 
types of development to have an impact on such designated areas. However, no such 
impact is considered reasonable to be concluded in this case. The National Park 
Authority themselves are noted to have offered no comment upon the scheme. 

8.4.17 The overall finished design of the units proposed as part of this application is 
acknowledged to not yet be completely confirmed, with intentions to match those 
already in use on the operational business site next door. To that end, the condition, 
referred to in the previous section of this report will ensure that an assessment of the 
final design is completed prior to any formal development could be completed. 

8.4.18 Accordingly, the proposal is considered compliant with Policies DEV5 and ENV2 of the 
Eden Local Plan as well as the NPPF and would not have any significantly detrimental 
or demonstrable impacts upon the local landscape. 

8.5 Drainage 

8.5.1 Policy DEV2 of the Local Plan, entitled ‘Water Management and Flood Risk’ confirms 
that ‘new development’ should ‘meet the sequential approach to development in flood 
risk areas’. 

8.5.2 The Policy confirms that ‘new development must incorporate sustainable drainage 
systems (SUDs), where practicable, to manage surface water run-off. All applications 
for major development, defined in Appendix 2, will be subject to review by the Lead 
Local Flood Authority. Surface water should be discharged in the following order of 
priority: 

1. To an adequate soakaway or some other form of infiltration system. 

2. By an attenuated discharge to a watercourse. 

3. By an attenuated discharge to a public surface water sewer. 

4. By an attenuated discharge to a public combined sewer. 

 Applicants will need to submit clear evidence demonstrating why there is no alternative 
option but to discharge surface water to the public sewerage system and that the 
additional discharge can be accommodated. The presumption will be against the 
discharge of surface water to the public sewerage network’. 

8.5.3 Chapter 14 of the NPPF entitled ‘Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and 
coastal change confirms in paragraph 154 that ‘New development should be planned 
for in ways that: 

a) avoid increased vulnerability to the range of impacts arising from climate change. 
When new development is brought forward in areas which are vulnerable, care 

Page  61



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

should be taken to ensure that risks can be managed through suitable adaptation 
measures, including through the planning of green infrastructure; and 

b) can help to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, such as through its location, 
orientation and design. Any local requirements for the sustainability of buildings 
should reflect the Government’s policy for national technical standards’. 

8.5.4 Paragraph 159 states that, ‘Inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding 
should be avoided by directing development away from areas at highest risk (whether 
existing or future). Where development is necessary in such areas, the development 
should be made safe for its lifetime without increasing flood risk elsewhere’. 

8.5.5 Paragraph 162 of the NPPF states that, ‘The aim of the sequential test is to steer new 
development to areas with the lowest risk of flooding. Development should not be 
allocated or permitted if there are reasonably available sites appropriate for the 
proposed development in areas with a lower risk of flooding. The strategic flood risk 
assessment will provide the basis for applying this test. The sequential approach 
should be used in areas known to be at risk now or in the future from any form of 
flooding’. 

8.5.6 Paragraph 167 states that, ‘When determining any planning applications, local planning 
authorities should ensure that flood risk is not increased elsewhere. Where appropriate, 
applications should be supported by a site-specific flood-risk assessment. 
Development should only be allowed in areas at risk of flooding where, in the light of 
this assessment (and the sequential and exception tests, as applicable) it can be 
demonstrated that: 

a) within the site, the most vulnerable development is located in areas of lowest flood 
risk, unless there are overriding reasons to prefer a different location; 

b) the development is appropriately flood resistant and resilient; 

c) it incorporates sustainable drainage systems, unless there is clear evidence that 
this would be inappropriate; 

d) any residual risk can be safely managed; and 

e) safe access and escape routes are included where appropriate, as part of an 
agreed emergency plan’. 

8.5.7 Paragraph 169 states that ‘Major developments should incorporate sustainable 
drainage systems unless there is clear evidence that this would be inappropriate. The 
systems used should: 

a) take account of advice from the lead local flood authority; 

b) have appropriate proposed minimum operational standards; 

c) have maintenance arrangements in place to ensure an acceptable standard of 
operation for the lifetime of the development; and 

d) where possible, provide multifunctional benefits’. 

8.5.8 The concerns related to drainage from objectors and the existing system being unable 
to cope with more demand are noted. These are common concerns in relation to 
development proposals. As part of the application process, the Lead Local Flood 
Authority (LLFA) and United Utilities were consulted upon the application as Statutory 
Consultees. 

Page  62



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

8.5.9 United Utilities have made it clear that they would wish to see conditions be imposed 
upon any subsequent permission. Whilst the LLFA sought further information in terms 
of surface water drainage. 

8.5.10 The applicant provided this additional information and the LLFA subsequently 
responded, confirming that they had no objection the application. However, they did 
confirm that they had liaised closely with United Utilities upon the application and that 
some concerns still remained. However, the conditions requested by United Utilities 
and indeed the LLFA will require final details to be submitted for approval, prior to any 
development, should this application be approved, be commenced upon site, which 
would allay these concerns. 

8.5.11 On the basis of the responses received from the consultees, there is no reason to 
doubt at this stage, that an appropriate drainage system can be implemented upon the 
site. The site is recognised to be located within a Flood Zone 1 (being at the lowest risk 
of flooding) and not instances of historic flood events have been identified by any 
Statutory Consultee. As such, this approach is consistent with previous decisions made 
by the Local Planning Authority and the Planning Committee. 

8.5.12 The concerns of the objectors are noted but given the views of both the LLFA and 
United Utilities, it is considered that given they consider an appropriate scheme could 
be provided for the site, it would not be reasonable to refuse the scheme on drainage 
grounds. 

8.5.13 As such, conditions are considered appropriate and they are recommended to be 
imposed upon any subsequent approval, which would require the submission of the 
formal, final detail, to be considered by the Local Planning Authority and relevant 
consultees (the Lead Local Flood Authority and United Utilities) prior to any 
commencement of the development. Were it not considered that such a scheme could 
be achieved, the request for conditions would be unreasonable. At this stage, there is 
considered to be a solution possible and those final details will need to be submitted by 
the developer in due course if this application is approved. 

8.5.14 Accordingly, there are no concerns that the scheme in itself would be contrary to Policy 
DEV2 and the NPPF. On that basis, the scheme is considered to be compliant with 
Policy DEV2 of the Local Plan and the NPPF and should be supported. 

8.6 Natural Environment 

8.6.1 Policy ENV1 of the Local Plan, entitled ‘Protection and Enhancement of the Natural 
Environment, Biodiversity and Geodiversity’ confirms that ‘new development will be 
required to avoid any net loss of biodiversity, and where possible enhance existing 
assets. Should emerging proposals identify potential impacts upon designated sites, 
regard should be given to the objectives for each of the hierarchy of sites’. 

8.6.2 Chapter 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) entitled ‘Conserving 
and enhancing the natural environment’ confirms the national guidance on such 
matters. Paragraph 174 states that ‘Planning policies and decisions should contribute 
to and enhance the natural and local environment by: 

a) protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity or geological 
value and soils (in a manner commensurate with their statutory status or identified 
quality in the development plan); 

b) recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside, and the wider 
benefits from natural capital and ecosystem services – including the economic and 

Page  63



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

other benefits of the best and most versatile agricultural land, and of trees and 
woodland; 

c) maintaining the character of the undeveloped coast, while improving public access 
to it where appropriate; 

d) minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including by 
establishing coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to current and 
future pressures; 

e) preventing new and existing development from contributing to, being put at 
unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of soil, 
air, water or noise pollution or land instability. Development should, wherever 
possible, help to improve local environmental conditions such as air and water 
quality, taking into account relevant information such as river basin management 
plans; and 

f) remediating and mitigating despoiled, degraded, derelict, contaminated and 
unstable land, where appropriate’. 

8.6.3 As has been noted earlier in this report, the site is known to have Great Crested Newts 
located upon it. Natural England were consulted up and confirmed their reliance upon 
the current ‘standing advice’. The standard advice essentially requires developers to 
ensure that they take full and proper account of any protected species located upon a 
site proposed for development. 

8.6.4 The Natural England response noted that the Ecological Appraisal completed did offer 
mitigation and that the applicant would need to apply for a European Protected Species 
Licence in order to do any work in association with these protected creatures. 

8.6.5 The appraisal summarised the number of Great Crested Newts population within the 
Holiday Park as existing and that the specific application site was considered to be 
likely to offer suitable foraging habitat for Great Crested Newts. 

8.6.6 Accordingly, the applicant understands that mitigation to prevent harm to these 
protected species is a requirement and is accordingly offered. An Ecological Mitigation 
and Management Plan is suggested, which would be developed, submitted and if 
acceptable, approved, prior to construction works taking place upon the site. Although 
it is recognised that such mitigation plans must be provided to gain the European 
Protected Species Licence, from a planning perspective, given standing advice, for a 
development of this scale, the Local Planning Authority needed to understand this too 
and a condition requiring this detail to be provided prior to any development 
commencing on site is considered reasonable. 

8.6.7 The applicant, therefore, confirmed within their submitted Ecological Appraisal, that the 
scheme as proposed could proceed without harm to the Great Crested Newts or 
indeed any other protected species. 

8.6.8 The appraisal confirms that there are 5 waterbodies within proximity to the site and of 
those 2 are considered excellent for Great Crested Newts (one 490 metres to the East 
and the other 290 metres South-East), 1 is considered good (40 metres to the South), 
1 is considered average (40 metres to the South) and 1 poor (240 metres to the East). 

8.6.9 It is noted that the appraisal considered the existing grassland to have low ecological 
value overall and that an existing ash tree would be retained and incorporated into the 
overall landscape plan. Further recommendations were also suggested by the ecology 
report: 

Page  64



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

 Existing grass space, sown with an appropriate native wildflower and grassland 
mix suitable for local surface geology together with native broadleaved tree and 
shrub planting; 

 Trees should include those laden with berries as an important source of nectar for 
invertebrates along with fruit and berries that are suitable for birds, mammals and a 
variety of invertebrate species; 

 Hedgerow should be of native species and the new wetland habitat should be 
specifically designed for great crested newts but also a range of associated flora 
and fauna. 

8.6.10 Officers concur with these recommendations and as such a condition is proposed 
related to landscaping which will be expected to take account of these 
recommendations attached to the draft conditions within Section 1 of this report. 

8.6.11 It is considered that overall, the landscaping proposed along with utilising the 
recommendations proposed by the applicants own ecologists can ensure that the site 
achieves a biodiversity gain, by taking an existing site, of overall low ecological value 
and enhancing it with a range of new planting, creation of a waterbody and the 
inclusion of a range of native trees, shrubs and wildflowers. 

8.6.12 The applicant’s intention in relation to the Ecological Mitigation Licence to ensure that 
existing population of Great Crested Newts is correctly managed and that the mitigation 
offered is considered acceptable and in order to be permitted to conduct any activity 
with these protected species, will require a formal licence from Natural England. 
Nevertheless, in this case, details will also be required to be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority for written approval. 

8.6.13 Policy ENV1 confirms that schemes should enhance existing assets. In this case, there 
is limited scope to do so but the applicant’s intention is to create assets instead. This is 
considered appropriate and would allow the development to improve the ecological 
value of the site and improve its biodiversity. Accordingly, these intentions are 
supported by officers. 

8.6.14 It is therefore considered that the proposal is compliant with Policy ENV1 of the Eden 
Local Plan as well as the NPPF and can be supported on the basis that appropriate 
condition(s) are imposed upon any subsequent grant of planning permission. 

8.7 Residential Amenity 

8.7.1 A further aim of Policy DEV5 is to ensure that development ‘Protects the amenity of the 
existing residents and business occupiers and provides an acceptable amenity for 
future occupiers’. Criterion ‘f’ of Paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that decisions 
should ensure that development ‘create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible 
and which promote health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing 
and future users; and where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not 
undermine the quality of life or community cohesion and resilience’. 

8.7.2 It is noted that there are no immediately adjacent residential properties to the site and 
that as such, there are considered to be limited impacts, in terms of noise, overlooking, 
overshadowing or a development being overbearing to neighbouring dwellings. 

8.7.3 It is recognised that the site is proposed for holiday use, with no permanent residents 
and as such, the occupants would be transient, utilising the site as either a base for 
sight-seeing or even as a place of rest. The site prohibits guests making excessive 
noise to impact those others staying on site and these are considered appropriate 

Page  65



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

measures to deal with any possible noise issues though other powers are available to 
the Council in regards to Statutory Noise Nuisances in the unlikely event that any such 
issues arose. 

8.7.4 In addition, there is scope for potential cumulative impacts from noise but the site 
immediately to the East is subject to the same rules and also has limited noise 
receptors in its vicinity. It is noted that the Environmental Health Officer has offered no 
concerns in relation to noise and the development proposed. 

8.7.5 In this respect then, there are no concerns from an amenity perspective and 
accordingly, the scheme is considered to comply with Policy DEV5 of the Eden Local 
Plan and merits support. 

8.8 Highways 

8.8.1  Policy DEV3 of the Eden Local Plan, entitled ‘Transport, Accessibility and Rights of 
Way’ states that ‘development will be refused if it will result in a severe impact in terms 
of road safety and increased traffic congestion. Development should provide safe and 
convenient access for pedestrians, cyclists and disabled people’. 

8.8.2 Paragraph 111 of the NPPF affirms that ‘development should only be prevented or 
refused on highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway 
safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe’. 

8.8.3 Paragraph 112 states that ‘within this context, applications for development should: 

a) give priority first to pedestrian and cycle movements, both within the scheme and 
with neighbouring areas; and second – so far as possible – to facilitating access to 
high quality public transport, with layouts that maximise the catchment area for bus 
or other public transport services, and appropriate facilities that encourage public 
transport use; 

b) address the needs of people with disabilities and reduced mobility in relation to all 
modes of transport; 

c) create places that are safe, secure and attractive – which minimise the scope for 
conflicts between pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles, avoid unnecessary street 
clutter, and respond to local character and design standards; 

d) allow for the efficient delivery of goods, and access by service and emergency 
vehicles; and 

e) be designed to enable charging of plug-in and other ultra-low emission vehicles in 
safe, accessible and convenient locations’. 

8.8.4 It is noted that there are concerns raised by some objectors in relation to potential 
highway impacts and this is a further concern raised by the Parish Council. These 
concerns are understood and it is noted that the response received by the Parish 
Council refers to previous permissions granted in the area that encouraged traffic to not 
utilise travelling through Newbiggin – one from 2011 (ref. 11/0001) granted by Eden 
District Council specifically requested a condition that required details of the routes 
vehicles would utilise to and from the site. That particular permission had a specific 
limit to its duration until 2014. The most recent permission that was found for this site, 
ref. 12/0795 included no such restriction. 

8.8.5 Regardless, this application must be considered in its own right and conditions 
restricting the route of vehicles are considered to fail to meet the tests applied when 

Page  66



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

forming such conditions and would not be supported by the case officer in this 
instance. 

8.8.6 The requirements of the planning consideration in this case is whether or not the 
development would lead to unacceptable impacts in terms of road safety and/or the 
residual impacts would be severe. In this case, it is noted that there would be guests 
attending the site, were it approved and became operational, via car. 

8.8.7 The power units of these cars is of course, unknown, but it is recognised that the sale 
of new fossil fuel based vehicles will end, presently, by 2030. The applicant also utilises 
a shuttle service which can allow visitors to tour the area without the use of their own 
car, should they so wish. This offer is well supported by officers but it is recognised that 
no planning condition could compel occupants to use this service, which will be a 
personal choice for any potential guest to decide. 

8.8.8 The applicants intend to utilise the already established site access so no new access 
would be required onto the existing highway network. This scheme was supported by a 
Travel Plan and Transport Statement and these, along with the application as a whole, 
has been assessed by the Local Highway Authority. 

8.8.9 The response from the Local Highway Authority notes that the local area has weight 
restrictions in place, which prevent heavier vehicles accessing Newbiggin. In addition, 
they confirm no objection to the application, subject to the inclusion of specific 
conditions, as detailed/included within the proposed conditions in Section 1 of this 
report. 

8.8.10 These comments are considered to confirm that no such unacceptable road safety or 
severe residual impacts are likely as a consequence of this development being 
implemented. Neither has any harm been identified in regards to the highway network, 
from a safety or capacity perspective by the Highway Authority as the Statutory 
Consultee. As such, it would unreasonable to refuse the scheme on such grounds. No 
demonstrable, significantly detrimental impacts are considered to be reasonably 
concluded on the basis of the Local Highway Authority response. 

8.8.11 Accordingly, it is considered that the proposal is compliant with Policy DEV3 and the 
NPPF and merits support. 

8.9 Contaminated Land 

8.9.1 The contaminated land survey submitted in support of the application confirms the 
previous land uses – confirmed as limestone quarrying being undertaken on the 
Eastern part of the site and a soil heap being located on the site also. These activities, 
along with a filled pond and a slurry bed are considered as potential sources of 
contamination. 

8.9.2 Policy ENV8 entitled ‘Land Contamination’ states that ‘The Council will approve 
development on land that is contaminated or where contamination is suspected, 
subject to other policies if: 

 Adequate contaminated land assessments prepared by a suitably competent 
person are submitted prior to any planning decision being taken, to determine 
whether or not unacceptable risks to human health or the environment arise from 
the proposals. 

 Where necessary, suitable remediation is carried out to ensure safe development’. 

Page  67



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

8.9.3 Paragraph 174 of the NPPF states, ‘Planning policies and decisions should contribute 
to and enhance the natural and local environment by: 

a) protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity or geological 
value and soils (in a manner commensurate with their statutory status or identified 
quality in the development plan); 

b) recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside, and the wider 
benefits from natural capital and ecosystem services – including the economic and 
other benefits of the best and most versatile agricultural land, and of trees and 
woodland; 

c) maintaining the character of the undeveloped coast, while improving public access 
to it where appropriate; 

d) minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including by 
establishing coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to current and 
future pressures; 

e) preventing new and existing development from contributing to, being put at 
unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of soil, 
air, water or noise pollution or land instability. Development should, wherever 
possible, help to improve local environmental conditions such as air and water 
quality, taking into account relevant information such as river basin management 
plans; and 

f) remediating and mitigating despoiled, degraded, derelict, contaminated and 
unstable land, where appropriate’. 

8.9.4 The scheme was therefore considered by the Council’s Environmental Health Officer 
(EHO). The initial response requested further assessment of potential gas monitoring 
issues. The applicant duly provided this information and had discussions with the 
Environmental Health Officer on the issue. 

8.9.5 A further response was therefore provided by the EHO which confirmed this further 
monitoring had been undertaken. As a result of this, the EHO considered that were the 
scheme to be approved, in order to not object to the scheme, mitigation measures 
would be required. 

8.9.6 The applicant has confirmed construction and verification standards it would intend to 
meet and these were assessed and supported by the EHO. This was formally 
submitted as part of the application and is included as part of the ‘approved plans’ 
within the draft conditions in this report but also specifically required as a condition 
were this application be approved. 

8.9.7 In addition the EHO requested a further condition in relation to unexpected 
contamination being discovered during any works, in line with that requested by the 
Environment Agency. 

8.9.8 The EHO further confirmed that they had assessed the detail provided by the applicant 
and confirmed that they had no objection to the scheme, subject to the imposition of to 
the condition referred to above. 

8.9.9 On the basis of the information submitted and imposition of conditions as requested, it 
is considered that the scheme can be supported. The applicant has provided 
appropriate assessments and mitigation which the Environmental Health Officer has 
considered and supports. 

Page  68



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

8.9.10 Accordingly, the proposal is considered to accord with Policy ENV8 as well as the 
NPPF and can be supported. 

8.10 Historic Environment 

8.10.1 Within the Local Plan, Policy ENV10, entitled ‘The Historic Environment’ states that 
‘where a development proposal affecting an archaeological site is acceptable in 
principle, the council will ensure preservation of the remains in situ as a preferred 
solution. Where in situ preservation is not justified, the development will be required to 
make adequate provision fort excavation and recording before or during development’. 

8.10.2 The Policy continues, ‘Development proposal that would result in substantial harm to or 
total loss of significance of a designated heritage asset or its setting will only be 
permitted where it can be clearly demonstrated that the public benefits of the proposal 
would outweigh the harm or loss, and that the harm or loss is necessary to achieve 
those benefits. The Council will require proposals to protect and where appropriate, 
enhance the significance and setting of Eden’s non-designated heritage assets, 
including buildings, archaeological sites, parks, landscapes and gardens. Where the 
harm is outweighed by the public benefits of the proposals, the Council will require an 
appropriate level of survey and recording, the results of which should be deposited with 
the Cumbria Historic Environment Record’. 

8.10.3 This is further supported by paragraph 197 of the National Planning Policy Framework 
which notes that, ‘in determining applications, local planning authorities should take 
account of: 

a) the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and 
putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation; 

b) the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to 
sustainable communities including their economic vitality; and 

c) the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local 
character and distinctiveness’. 

8.10.4 Paragraph 201 states ‘Where a proposed development will lead to substantial harm to 
(or total loss of significance of) a designated heritage asset, local planning authorities 
should refuse consent, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or total 
loss is necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh that harm or loss, 
or all of the following apply: 

a) the nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses of the site; and 

b) no viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the medium term through 
appropriate marketing that will enable its conservation; and 

c) conservation by grant-funding or some form of not for profit, charitable or public 
ownership is demonstrably not possible; and 

d) the harm or loss is outweighed by the benefit of bringing the site back into use’. 

8.10.5 The site is recognised to be a restored mineral site and therefore, it is considered, that 
there would be very limited scope for any historic asset to be harmed by this 
development as proposed. 

8.10.6 On this basis it is considered that the scheme would have no significant detrimental 
impacts on the historic environment and as such can be considered compliant with 
Policy ENV10 of the Eden Local Plan and the NPPF. 

Page  69



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

8.11 Other Matters 

8.11.1 It is noted that Parish Council have questioned the ‘integrity’ of the application for 
failing to engage with the local community and what they perceive is ‘superficial’ 
information provided in the supporting documentation. 

8.11.2 To clarify, there is no obligation for any applicant to engage with any public body or 
consultee prior to submitting a planning application. Whilst it is always recommended, it 
is in no way a formal obligation and in itself does not represent a material consideration 
in the determination of this application, nor a reason to refuse a planning application. 
To then suggest that the applicants then lack integrity because of this is not considered 
an acceptable conclusion to draw. 

8.11.3 In relation to the application being ‘superficial’ again, this is an opinion which can have 
no bearing upon the determination of the planning application. Whilst the opinion of the 
Parish Council is therefore noted upon these matters, in the interests of fairness, it is 
important that these aspects of the comments received are responded to and even 
more importantly, clarified that these factors do not represent a base upon which to 
refuse this application and are not material planning considerations that can be 
afforded any weight in the planning balance. 

9. Implications 

9.1 Legal Implications 

9.1.1 The following matters have been considered but no issues are judged to arise. 

9.2 Equality and Diversity 

9.2.1 The Council must have regard to the elimination of unlawful discrimination and 
harassment, and the promotion of equality under the Equality Act 2010. 

9.3 Environment 

9.3.1 The Council must have due regard to conserving bio-diversity under the Natural 
Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

9.4 Crime and Disorder 

9.4.1 Under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, the Council must have regard to the need to 
reduce crime and disorder in exercising any of its functions. 

9.5 Children 

9.5.1 Under the Children Act 2004, the Council has a duty to safeguard and promote the 
welfare of children in the exercise of any of its functions. 

9.6 Human Rights 

9.6.1 In determining applications, the Council must ensure that all parties get a fair hearing 
in compliance with the provisions of Article 6 under the European Convention on 
Human Rights, as now embodied in UK law in the Human Rights Act 1998. 

10. Conclusion 

10.1 This scheme is for a tourism development and whilst is considered upon its own merits 
and rights, is noted to be a proposed extension of an existing tourism development. 
The land is noted to have limited value and indeed use, with it being a former mineral 
extraction site now restored. 

Page  70



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

10.2 In that regard, utilising the site for a more productive use, is, in principle considered 
acceptable. The assessment of the application is made within this report but ultimately, 
the decision is based upon the benefits of the scheme, which the applicant considers 
would be related to the potential monies generated by visitors to the site (suggested at 
circa £2.46 million of ‘direct and indirect induced visitor expenditure and GVA’) along 
with the creation of 10.95 full time jobs once the site was operational. 

10.3 The potential impacts of such a scheme are landscape, drainage, highway impacts and 
potential impacts on ecology and in particular protected species. 

10.4 In terms of landscape impacts, these are considered to be limited. Whilst you can 
observe the fells of the UNESCO Lake District National Park, simply being able to 
observe something does not constitute harm. Even so, the National Park Authority 
themselves have not offered any comments upon the scheme. The landscape planting 
proposed will not hide the scheme, nor should it as that in itself would not necessarily 
be acceptable and neither is it a requirement of the Local Plan. However, it would 
augment the development and existing hedgerow, ultimately offering an enhanced 
value to the site in terms of biodiversity and although this will take time to become 
established, that is no justification to refuse the scheme. 

10.5 Concerns related to drainage and highways are also understood. There is, of course, 
potential for detrimental impacts in relation to both of these issues if they are not 
properly assessed and where necessary, addressed. In this case, the applicant’s 
intentions in relation to drainage are considered acceptable in principle to the Lead 
Local Flood Authority and indeed United Utilities, but it will be for the applicant to 
submit final details prior to the commencement of any subsequently approved scheme 
for approval. This is considered acceptable to both consultees in this case and there is 
no reason to doubt at this stage that an engineered solution cannot be provided. Were 
that so, no such conditions would be sought. 

10.6 The potential highway impacts are also appreciated. But again, in order to justify a 
refusal of a scheme such as this purely because there would be an increase in traffic 
movements, does not demonstrate harm. In this regard decisions must be made solely 
in regards to the demonstrable impacts of any such increase. The assessment of the 
Local Highway Authority is that they have not raised any objection in terms of highway 
impact from a safety or capacity perspective. The Local Planning Authority has no 
reason to doubt this assessment from a Statutory Consultee, neither has any form of 
assessment been undertaken or provided by objectors which demonstrates or warrants 
an evidential view to the contrary. As such, refusing the scheme on such grounds, 
without any credible, demonstrable evidence to the contrary, would not be justified. 

10.7 The site is recognised to have potential for foraging Great Crested Newts and the 
applicant is well aware of this population, even encouraging and improving their habitat 
on the existing site. However, they remain an important consideration of this scheme. 
Their potential impact has been assessed by an ecological appraisal and it is 
recognised that in order to proceed with any works on this site a licence, issued by 
Natural England would be required. This will involve a separate process between the 
applicant and Natural England but from a planning perspective, it is considered that 
were that licence approved, the works would not have a significantly detrimental impact 
upon these protected creatures. 

10.8 Even so, in order to ensure the Local Planning Authority is fully aware of the processes 
the applicant will undertake, a condition detailing this, to be submitted prior to any 
works being carried out on site, is recommended. 

Page  71



Agenda Item 2 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

10.9 The details submitted as a whole, are, for the reasons articulated throughout this report 
considered acceptable and merit support. Accordingly, the proposal is recommended 
for approval. 

Oliver Shimell 
Assistant Director Development 

 
 

Background Papers: Planning File 20/0424 
 

Checked by or on behalf of the Monitoring Officer 04.08.2021 

Page  72



Agenda Item 3 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

Date of Committee: 19 August 2021 

Planning Application No: 20/0404 Date Received: 22 June 2020 

OS Grid Ref: NY 351430, 53005 Expiry Date: 20 August 2021 

Parish: Penrith Parish Ward: Penrith South 

Application Type: Full 

Proposal: Proposed residential dwelling 

Location: Land at Gloucester Yard, Penrith 

Applicant: Mr and Mrs Naylor 

Agent: Graham K Norman (Architect) Ltd 

Case Officer: David Thompson 

Reason for Referral: The application is recommended for approval contrary to 
objections from the Town Council 

 

 

Page  73



Agenda Item 3 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

 

Page  74



Agenda Item 3 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

1. Recommendation 

It is recommended that planning permission be granted subject to the following 
conditions: 

Time limit for commencement 

1. The development permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years 
from the date of this permission. 

 Reason: In order to comply with the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004. 

Approved Plans 

2. The development hereby granted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
drawings hereby approved: 

i Application Form received 20/05/2020 

ii As Proposed Location Plan (116-138A -01) received 20 May 2020 

iii As Existing Plan, Sections and Elevations (116-138A-02) received 20 May 
2020 

iv As Proposed Site Plan (116-138A=03C) received 20 May 2020 

v As Proposed Ground Floor Plan, Elevations and Section (116-138A-04A) 
received 20 May 2020 

vi As Proposed First and Second Floor Plan, Sections and Elevations (116-
138A-05) received 20 May 2020 

vii As Proposed Site Sections (116-138A-06) received 04 December 2020 

viii Design and Access Statement (116-138A) received 30 June 2020 

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory development and to avoid any ambiguity as to 
what constitutes the permission. 

Permitted Development Restricted 

3. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and/or re-enacting 
that Order) no development falling within Schedule 2, Part 1, Class A, B, C, D 
and E of Part 1 Schedule 2 to that Order shall be carried out without the express 
permission of the Council in writing. 

Reason: To prevent the overdevelopment of the site and to safeguard the living 
conditions of adjoining properties and the visual appearance of the building. 

Details of Landscaping 

4. No development shall take place until full details of both hard and soft landscape 
works, including a phased programme of works, have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these works shall be 
carried out as approved prior to the occupation of any part of the development or 
in accordance with the programme agreed by the Local Planning Authority. Any 
trees or other plants which die or are removed within the first five years following 
the implementation of the landscaping scheme shall be replaced during the next 

Page  75



Agenda Item 3 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

planting season. 

 Reason: To ensure that the development is landscaped in the interest of the 
visual character and appearance of the area. 

Details of Walls and Fences 

5. No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority a plan indicating the positions, design, 
materials and type of boundary treatment to be erected. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 Reason: To protect the visual appearance of the area and the living conditions of 
neighbouring occupiers. 

Construction Hours 

6. Construction works shall be carried out only between 0800 – 1800 hours 
Mondays – Fridays; 0900 – 1300 hours on Saturdays and there shall be no 
activity on Sundays and Bank Holidays. 

 Reason: To safeguard the amenity of residents living nearby. 

Surface Water Drainage System 

7. Prior to the commencement of development a construction surface water 
management plan shall be submitted to and agreed in writing with the local 
planning authority. Thereafter, all works shall be undertaken in accordance with 
the approved plan. 

Reason: To safeguard against flooding to surrounding sites and to safeguard 
against pollution of surrounding watercourses and drainage systems. 

Foul and Surface Water Connection 

8. Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems. 

 Reason: To secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and 
pollution. 

2. Proposal and Site Description 

2.1 Proposal 

2.1.1 This proposal is a full planning application for the erection of a three storey dwelling 
with an integral garage. 

2.1.2 The building would have a full height of 8.462m, a depth of 12.950m and a width of 
6.5m. The level courtyard garden would be 5.8m in depth. The property would have tall 
bi folding doors and windows that have a vertical emphasis, reflecting the compact plot 
size of the site. At ground floor level the proposed dwelling will have a hall 
study/bedroom and cloakroom. The staircase leads up to a landing serving two further 
bedrooms and a bathroom. The staircase then rises again to an open plan kitchen, 
dining and living room at second floor level. Additional amenity space would be 
provided by the proposed balustrades. 

2.1.3 The site is has vehicular access from the service road of Gloucester Place itself, which 
runs between Great Dockray and West Lane. 

Page  76



Agenda Item 3 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

2.2 Site Description 

2.2.1 The application site is a rectangular plot of land that has an area of 121sqm, on which 
there is a single storey storage building in the south west corner of the yard. The site is 
at the rear of 9 Castlegate. To the east of the site is a part one, part two storey building 
that is use as a hairdressing salon. Gloucester Way is a narrow cobble stoned service 
path that has predominantly small ancillary buildings along its way that are built in the 
traditional dry sandstone style. The application site is within the Penrith Conservation 
Area but there are no listed buildings nearby. 

3. Consultees 

3.1 Statutory Consultees 

Consultee Response 

Highway Authority A response was received on the 30 July 2020 advising 
that inadequate information has been submitted to 
satisfy the Local Planning Authority that the proposal is 
acceptable in terms of: a) access b) visibility splays c) 
off-street parking d) on site turning facilities e) its effect 
on local traffic conditions and public safety f) impact on 
sustainable travel. 

Following negotiations with the applicants a revised 
response was received on 17 August 2020 stating that 
although the proposed development cannot meet the 
off street parking requirement that are set out in the 
Cumbria Development Design Guide for a 3 bedroom 
dwellings of 2 parking spaces per unit, account has 
been the sustainable location of the proposed 
development, which would have with good access to 
public transport and City Centre services. 
Consequently, the County Council has no objection to 
the proposed development. 

It should however be noted that the Cumbria County 
Council Parking Enforcement Team have stated that 
no resident parking permits can be allocated to new 
developments as there is currently no spare capacity. 

Local Lead Flood Authority The Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) have records of 
minor surface water flooding to Castlegate, which 
indicate a 0.1 percent (1 in 1000) chance of flooding 
occurring each year and the Environment Agency (EA) 
surface water maps do not indicate that the site is in an 
area of risk. 

3.2 Discretionary Consultees 

Consultee Response 

United Utilities A response was received on the 19 May 2020 advising 
of the following: The proposals are acceptable in 
principle. A condition is recommended that drainage 
shall be carried out in accordance with the Drainage 

Page  77



Agenda Item 3 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

Plan proposing surface water discharging into 
soakaway and that no surface water will be permitted to 
drain directly or indirectly in to the public sewer. A 
further condition is recommended requiring that foul and 
surface water to be drained on separate systems. 

EDC Conservation Officer Conservation Officer statement 

Heritage value 

The proposed development site is located within Penrith 
conservation area. The conservation area has many 
characteristics one of which is its yards – they form a 
significant feature of Penrith’s townscape and result 
from the town’s medieval layout based on long narrow 
burgage plots. Yards run perpendicular to the direction 
of a street and are accessed via alleyways that pierce 
the main street elevation with an archway or doorway, 
usually pedestrian in scale but often large enough for 
carriages. Beyond that, a yard is usually defined by 
long, usually one or two storey, buildings to left and 
right and terminated by either a tall wall or by a building 
constructed across the width of the yard, parallel to the 
main street. 

Each yard is unique with its own character. They would 
have functioned more like streets or courtyards with 
buildings of different uses facing in to the shared 
spaces. However today the yards have a more 
backland character. 

The proposed development site is located off 
Gloucester Arms Yard nestled behind Great Dockray 
and Castlegate. This yard is of interest due to its scale 
and unity of style. The older buildings are of 
rubblestone but later buildings are of coursed masonry 
with ashlar details and orderly fenestration patterns. A 
degree of grandeur and formality is fitting for this area 
as it would have been a busy stabling area for guests to 
the Gloucester Arms Hotel. 

Existing units around Gloucester yard have a variety of 
uses including: offices, hair salon, tattoo parlour and 
dental surgery. The dental surgery is located within a 
modern building with render exterior. The land 
immediately to the east of the proposed development 
site contains 5 late 20th century residential dwellings. 
The western end of the yard accessed from West Lane 
has some private vehicular access. As such the area 
currently has a more ‘backland’ nature without a strong 
architectural character. 

Historic maps show that the proposed development site 
has historically been development land although the 
function of the buildings is unknown it is assumed they 
were ancillary. The site is currently undeveloped with 

Page  78



Agenda Item 3 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

remnants of previous buildings and a single storey 
storage building. It is bordered to the north by the rear 
of no.9 Castlegate, and to the south by a building in use 
as a hairdressing salon. 

Overall the proposed development site has low historic 
interest, it contributes to our understanding of how the 
immediate area incorporating Gloucester Yard 
developed. 

Impact Assessment 

Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 says local planning 
authorities should pay special attention to preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of conservation 
areas. 

Paragraph 193 of the NPPF 2019, states ‘When 
considering the impact of a proposed development on 
the significance of a designated heritage asset, great 
weight should be given to the asset’s conservation. This 
is irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to 
substantial harm, total loss or less than substantial 
harm to its significance’. 

Paragraph 206 of the NPPF 2019 states ‘Local planning 
authorities should look for opportunities for new 
development within Conservation Areas and World 
Heritage Sites, and within the setting of heritage assets, 
to enhance or better reveal their significance. Proposals 
that preserve those elements of the setting that make a 
positive contribution to the asset (or which better reveal 
its significance) should be treated favourably’. 

Policy ENV10 of the emerging Local Plan states 
‘proposals in conservation areas will be expected to 
preserve and enhance their special architectural and 
historic interest’. Also development proposals should be 
of high quality and sensitive design that takes account 
of scale, density, height and materials. 

The proposed development comprises of the erection of 
a three storey dwelling with an integral garage 
accessed from the private road off Gloucester Place/ 
Yard. The proposed dwelling is of contemporary design 
and materials consisting of smooth render cladding and 
natural timber weatherboarding, a barrel vaulted roof 
finished in profiled steel, and composite 
timber/aluminium windows and doors. 

Given the topography of the land in the area, the small 
plot size and the scale of surrounding buildings the 
proposed size and scale of the new building is 
considered to be appropriate. The group of taller 
buildings which the proposed building would contribute 
to would create a ‘terminus’ to the Yard. 

Page  79



Agenda Item 3 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

The proposed contemporary design and materials is in 
contrast to the historic buildings in the area but is not 
considered to detract from the character of the area. 
Instead it clearly differentiates itself as a modern infill 
development. 

Overall the proposed development is considered to 
meet those policies outlined above within the Planning 
Act 1990, NPPF 2019 and Eden Local Plan ENV10. 

4. Town Council Response 

 Please Tick as Appropriate 

Town Council Object Support No Response 
No View 

Expressed 

Penrith     

4.1 A response was received on the 5 August 2020 stating the following: 

“The application site on the edge of the Penrith Conservation Area and, although there 

are no listed buildings close by it is an area of older residential buildings that enhance 

the character of the area. 

The contemporary design is incongruous and not felt to enhance the area, it is out of 

scale with the surrounding buildings and is too industrial in design. 

Inadequate parking is provided with the development. For a 3 bed development, 

Cumbria County Council would expect 2 parking spaces. This area already has 

pressure for parking. 

Should planning permission be approved there should be archaeological research and 

excavation and recording prior to any development taking place”. 

5. Representations 

5.1 Letters of consultation were sent to nearby neighbours on the 9 April 2020 and a site 
notice was posted on 14 April 2020. A re-consultation took place on the 2 July 2020 
following revised plans being submitted. 

No of Neighbours Consulted 28 No of letters of support 0 

No of Representations Received 0 No of neutral representations 0 

No of objection letters 0   

6. Relevant Planning History 

6.1 None recorded. 

7. Policy Context 

7.1 Development Plan 

Eden Local Plan (2014-32) 

 LS1 Locational Strategy 

 DEV1 General Approach to New Development 

 DEV2 Water Management and Flood Risk 

Page  80



Agenda Item 3 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

 DEV5 - Design of New Development 

 ENV10 – The Historic Environment 

 PEN1 – A Town Plan for Penrith 

Supplementary Planning Documents: 

 Housing (2010) 

7.2 Other Material Considerations 

National Planning Policy Framework (2021): 

 Chapter 2 Achieving sustainable development 

 Chapter 4 Decision-making 

 Chapter 5 Delivering a sufficient supply of homes 

 Chapter 11 Making effective use of land 

 Chapter 12 Achieving well-designed places 

7.3 The policies detailed above are the most relevant policies relating to this application. 

8. Planning Assessment 

8.1 Key/Main Planning Issues 

 Principle 

 Landscape and Visual Impacts 

 Residential Amenity 

 Scale and Design 

 Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Built Environment 

8.2 Principle 

8.2.1 Policy LS1 of the Eden Local Plan sets Penrith as the highest in the settlement 
hierarchy where the Council expects the focus for residential, employment and 
commercial provision. 

8.2.2 Policy DEV1 of the Eden Local Plan advises that the Council will always work 
proactively with applicants to find solutions which mean the proposals can be approved 
wherever possible, and to secure developments that improves economic, social and 
environmental conditions in the area. 

8.2.3 Policy DEV2 of the Eden Local Plan requires new development to be in a location 
which (inter alia) avoids risk to the water supply, or includes sufficient mitigation 
measures to ensure that there is no risk to water supply. 

8.2.4 The Local Lead Flood Authority and United Utilities both advise that the proposal is a 
minor development that would not have an adverse impact on the local water supply. 
The LLFA also state that the application site is in a low risk flood area and that the 
proposed development would not worsen that. 

8.2.5 Policy DEV5 of the Eden Local Plan requires developments to show a clear 
understanding of the form and character of the districts built and natural environment, 
complementing and enhancing the existing area. It also looks for proposals to protect 
the amenity of the existing residents and provide an acceptable amenity for future 
occupiers. 

8.2.6 Policy LS1 sets out the locational strategy for development in Eden. The policy gives 
support for new development within Penrith which is the main town within the Eden 

Page  81



Agenda Item 3 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

District, stating that as the main town in the district Penrith will benefit from sustained 
development. This is also an objective of Policy PEN1. 

8.2.7 It is considered that this proposal meets the aims and requirements of the above 
mentioned policies in principle. The application site is located within the centre of 
Penrith, which is identified as at the apex of the settlement hierarchy for development 
purposes. Policies have been shaped for Penrith in recognition of this to ensure that 
the town can continue to offer a range of housing that meets the needs of residents 
and that in turn encourages economic growth and viability. This will be subject to 
further consideration on the impact on landscape, neighbouring amenities and the 
scale and design which are discussed in the following sections of this report. 

8.3 Landscape and Visual Impacts 

8.3.1 Policy DEV5 of the Eden Local Plan requires that proposed development demonstrates 
that it shows clear understanding of the form and character of the District’s built 
environment, complementing and enhancing the existing area. 

8.3.2 Chapter 12 ‘Achieving well-designed places’ of the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) states that new development should be sympathetic to the local 
character and history, including the surrounding built environment and landscape 
setting. This is supported by Policy DEV5 of the Eden Local Plan which states that 
development should “reflect the existing street scene”. 

8.3.3 The application site and its surroundings has a functional appearance that is typical of 
the rear of any urban town centre street, as the application site is located alongside a 
single width back entry area that acts as a service road for commercial properties 
along Castlegate.  As such, due to its functional nature, the site is not a conspicuous 
feature in the public realm and it is not an important part of the conservation area. 

8.3.4 Indeed, if there is an opportunity for development of a more contemporary nature to be 
introduced, it is considered that the application site is an appropriate place to locate it. 
It is also possible to say that a pastiche reproduction of the more prominent traditional 
buildings in the town centre would be more inappropriate in scale and form than the 
proposed development. In this regard therefore, it is considered that no conflict would 
arise with Policy DEV5 or the guidance in the NPPF. 

8.3.5 It is considered therefore that due to its backland site and location, the proposed 
development would have a neutral impact on its immediate surroundings and that as 
such the proposal meets the aims and requirements of policy DEV5 for development to 
be acceptable in terms of impacts on the landscape and visual amenity. 

8.4 Residential Amenity 

8.4.1 Policy DEV5 of the Eden Local Plan states that development should “optimise the 
potential use of the site and avoids overlooking”, “protect the amenity of existing 
residents” and provide an “acceptable amenity for future occupiers”. This is supported 
by Chapter 12 Achieving well-designed places of the NPPF which states that new 
development should provide “a high standard of amenity for existing and future users”. 

8.4.2 The proposed dwelling has a three storey building on its western boundary that is 
similar in height and proportions to the proposal and it has a blank gable end wall. On 
the eastern boundary are two single storey storage buildings. To the immediate north 
of the site is 9 Castlegate, a two storey dwelling. The applicants have been careful to 
locate the principal windows of the property on the south eastern elevation to ensure 

Page  82



Agenda Item 3 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

that overlooking and loss of privacy for neighbouring residential amenity would be 
minimised. 

8.4.3 The proposed building would result in no loss of light nor appear over dominant in 
relation to its immediate surroundings. In addition, the proposed residential use is 
regarded as an appropriate use for a town centre location that would be in keeping with 
other such uses in the immediate locality. Therefore, the development would not be an 
incongruous use that would result in any discernible adverse impacts upon 
neighbouring amenity beyond those associated with the lawful use of the building. 

8.4.4 The proposed development is considered to have been designed and located to 
protect neighbouring amenities as far as possible. It is considered that the proposal 
would protect the amenity of existing and future occupiers and as such meets the aims 
and requirements of policy DEV5 of the Eden Local Plan and the guidance in the 
NPPF. 

8.5 Scale and Design 

8.5.1  Chapter 12 of the NPPF and Policy DEV5 of the Eden Local Plan requires the design 
of new development to be to high standard, reflecting the form and character of the 
locality and reflect the existing street scene through the use of appropriate scale, mass, 
form, layout, high quality architectural design and use of construction materials. 

8.5.2 Policy ENV10 of the Eden Local Plan says the Council will require proposals for 
development to conserve and enhance the significance of heritage assets and their 
setting. Also development proposals should be of high quality and sensitive design that 
takes account of scale, density, height and materials. Policy DEV5 of the Eden Local 
Plan supports scheme that are of a high quality which reflects local distinctiveness. 

8.5.3 The proposal has a very contemporary design and palette of materials. It can best be 
described as having a townhouse form and layout, having the scale of a two storey 
building, but with rooms in the roof space. The proposed dwelling would have a barrel 
vaulted roof and it would be clad in a smooth render finish with natural timber/fibre 
cement weatherboarding at second floor level. The curved roof will be finished with a 
profiled steel 'standing seam' roofing system in a blue/grey shade. All windows and 
doors will have composite timber/aluminium clad frames. 

8.5.4 The site is within a streetscene that is dominated by minor scale buildings that strong 
architectural character. Given the backland location of the application site and its 
relatively small plot size, it is considered that in these circumstances, the proposal 
would have no adverse impact on the substantive part of the conservation area and its 
strong architectural integrity. 

8.5.5 The design that is proposed can reasonably be described and considered as modern 
and contemporary in nature. Design is noted to be a subjective matter, particularly 
when they may affect heritage assets. However, it is not the purpose or place of the 
Planning System to impose personal preferences for design. Instead, the design of 
each proposal should be considered entirely on its own merits, taking into account 
each proposal, its locality and any impacts that would arise. 

8.5.6 The Eden Local Plan does not require new development within Conservation Areas or 
within the setting of Listed Buildings to always need to be traditional in design, or 
constructed from traditional materials. Instead, any proposal must be considered in 
relation to whether or not the design and materials complements a Conservation Area 
and surrounding heritage assets, and can be reasonably said to preserve or enhance 
the appearance, character, significance and setting of any such affected assets. 

Page  83



Agenda Item 3 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

8.5.7 Where a contemporary design is proposed within a Conservation Area or setting of a 
Listed Building, this in itself should not just be considered inappropriate or unsuitable. 
Instead, such design will require a greater degree of scrutiny and consideration beyond 
those taken for a more traditional design and finish. In the case of the current 
application it is important to assess the proposals in the context of the existing building, 
and whether the nature of the design proposed and use of the cladding materials and 
window fenestration proposed for example, would impact upon the character of the 
Conservation Area, street scene, and nearby Listed Buildings, and what extent that 
impact would be. 

8.5.8 The proposal is considered to meet the aims and requirements policy DEV5 of the 
Eden Local Plan as it shows a clear understanding of the form and character of the 
area through its scale, mass and form. It is considered to be of a high quality design 
and proposes high quality contemporary materials which would conserve the character 
of the Conservation Area, for the reasons detailed above, in accordance with Policy 
ENV10 of the Eden Local Plan. 

8.6 Impact on the character and appearance of the built environment (LB’s/CA) 

8.6.1 The application site is located within the south western edge of the Penrith 
Conservation Area, which was designated in 1975 and has been extended since. The 
predominant building style is Georgian, as this was when the greater part of the town 
underwent its existing form of development. However, like so many English market 
towns, the layout has its origins in the medieval period. 

8.6.2 The chief characteristic of the townscape is its permeability, as although the focal point 
of the town centre is the Market Square, the layout is not dominated by a single ‘High 
Street’. This enables greater pedestrian circulation to take place, which is facilitated by 
a pattern of interconnecting courtyards and passage ways, where openings are often 
incorporated into the facades of individual buildings. 

8.6.3 It is likely that Gloucester Yard, historically, would have fulfilled such a role, acting 
perhaps as part of a stable yard for the nearby Gloucester Arms Hotel, which was once 
a coaching inn. Now, it has more of a ‘backland’ function in the townscape of the 
conservation area. 

8.6.4 Spatially therefore, the application site is not a coherent part of the conservation area 
and has none of the characteristics that distinguish it. The Conservation Officer has 
concurred with this view, observing that the proposed development would not detract 
from the historic character of the buildings in the conservation area and that “Instead it 
clearly differentiates itself as a modern infill development” that would be an 
enhancement of the immediate streetscene, which would provide a strong terminus to 
the rather piecemeal pattern of development along the yard itself. 

8.6.5 Therefore, due to the appropriateness of the design proposed, and the limited visual 
impact/prominence that the application site has to the character and appearance of the 
wider Conservation Area, it is considered that the proposed development would result 
in no adverse impacts upon the historic environment and can be said to conserve. As 
such, the development is considered to reasonably preserve the character of the 
Conservation Area and therefore, accord with the requirements of Policy ENV10 of the 
Eden Local Plan in this regard. 

Page  84



Agenda Item 3 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

8.7 Other 

8.7.1 Infrastructure 

8.7.2 Within the Eden Local Plan, Policy DEV3 notes that ‘development will be refused if it 
will result in a severe impact in terms of road safety and increased traffic congestion. 
This is supported by paragraph 109 of the NPPF which affirms that ‘development 
should only be prevented or refused on highway safety grounds if there would be an 
unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road 
network would be severe”. 

8.7.3 The Highways Authority have reconsidered their assessment in the light of negotiations 
with the applicants and have taken into account the sustainable town centre location of 
the application site and the proximity to public transport hubs. They have concluded 
that the fact that the three bedroom dwelling cannot provide at least two off street 
parking spaces should not warrant refusal. 

8.7.4 The Highways Authority have done this in recognition of the fact that Penrith is the 
service centre for the District and is a sustainable and well connected location, where 
people do not need to rely exclusively on car borne travel and have access to 
alternative forms of transport such as buses, cycling and walking. In such 
circumstances it is considered that the usual parking standards can be relaxed. 

8.7.5 Within the Eden Local Plan, Policy DEV2 seeks to ensure that new development would 
not result in any increased flood risk, and ensure that developments incorporates 
Sustainable Drainage Systems (SUDs) where practicable. The Lead Local Flood 
Authority and United Utilities have not raised any objections providing the development 
is carried out in accordance with the drainage plan and that no surface water will be 
permitted to drain directly or indirectly in to the public sewer. 

8.7.6 Therefore, for the reasons detailed above, it is considered that the proposed 
development can be serviced by appropriate infrastructure and would not result in any 
adverse impacts upon highway safety or capacity, nor result in any increased flood 
risk. As such, the proposal is considered to be in-compliance with Policies DEV2 and 
DEV3 of the Eden Local Plan. 

9. New Homes Bonus 

9.1 The prospect of receiving a Bonus is, in principle, capable of being taken into account 
as a ‘material consideration’ in determining a planning application. Whether potential 
Bonus payments are in fact a material consideration in relation to a particular 
application will depend on whether those payments would be used in a way which is 
connected to the application and to the use and development of land. For example, 
potential Bonus payments could be a material consideration if they were to be used to 
mitigate impacts resulting from development. But if the use to which the payments are 
to be put is unclear or is for purposes unrelated to the development concerned a 
decision maker would not be entitled to take them into account when making a decision 
on a planning application. In this particular case, there are no plans to use the New 
Homes Bonus arising from this application in connection with this development. 

10. Implications 

10.1. Legal Implications 

10.1.1 The following matters have been considered but no issues are judged to arise. 

Page  85



Agenda Item 3 

REPORTS FOR DEBATE 

 

10.2 Equality and Diversity 

10.2.1 The Council must have regard to the elimination of unlawful discrimination and 
harassment, and the promotion of equality under the Equality Act 2010. 

10.3 Environment 

10.3.1 The Council must have due regard to conserving bio-diversity under the Natural 
Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

10.4 Crime and Disorder 

10.4.1 Under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, the Council must have regard to the need to 
reduce crime and disorder in exercising any of its functions. 

10.5 Children 

10.5.1 Under the Children Act 2004, the Council has a duty to safeguard and promote the 
welfare of children in the exercise of any of its functions. 

10.6 Human Rights 

10.6.1 In determining applications, the Council must ensure that all parties get a fair hearing 
in compliance with the provisions of Article 6 under the European Convention on 
Human Rights, as now embodied in UK law in the Human Rights Act 1998. 

11. Conclusion 

11.1 It is considered that the proposal accords with the Development Plan for the following 
reasons which are not outweighed by material considerations. 

11.2 The proposal for the erection of a dwelling within a residential curtilage has been 
designed and located to make the best use of the land available without adversely 
impacting on any neighbouring properties. 

11.3 It is concluded that the proposal is acceptable and compliant with policies LS1 and 
DEV5 of the Eden Local Plan, in that an appropriate high quality design is proposed 
and that there would be no adverse impacts upon neighbouring amenity or to the 
character and appearance of the area, including the conservation area, in accordance 
with Policy ENV10 of the Eden Local Plan. 

11.4 Therefore, the application is considered to be supportable and is recommended for 
approval. 

Oliver Shimell 
Assistant Director Development 

 
 

Background Papers: Planning File 20/0404 

 

Checked by or on behalf of the Monitoring Officer 04.08.21 

Page  86


	Agenda
	6 Planning Issues
	RefusalNotices

	7 Planning Issues - Applications for Debate (Green Papers)

